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PART I.
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Dorchester Minerals, L.P. is a publicly traded Dedee limited partnership that commenced operationdanuary 31, 2003, upon the
combination of Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd., RepublayRty Company, L.P. and Spinnaker Royalty Compéary, Dorchester Hugoton was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership, and R#joland Spinnaker were private Texas limited paighips. Our common units are listed on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market. American Stockisfer & Trust Company is our registrar and tranafgent and its address and telept
number is 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11219,08837-5449. Our executive offices are locatedd®330ak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300,
Dallas, Texas, 75219-4541, and our telephone numk{gi4) 559-0300. We have established an Intemeésite at www.dmlp.net that
contains the last annual meeting presentation dimk o the NASDAQ website. You may obtain all cemt filings free of charge at our
website. We will provide electronic or paper coppésur annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly repan Form 10-Q, current reports on Form
8-K and amendments to those reports filed or flmetsto the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEE€e of charge upon written requ:
at our executive offices. In this report, the té¢fartnership,” as well as the terms "us," "our,e;%and "its" are sometimes used as abbreviatec
references to Dorchester Minerals, L.P. itself ordbester Minerals, L.P. and its related entities.

Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Manageime, which is managed by its general partner cbBester Minerals Management |
LLC. As a result, the Board of Managers of DorcheMinerals Management GP LLC exercises effectstiol of our Partnership. In this
report, the term "general partner" is used as &neafnted reference to Dorchester Minerals Managetne. Our general partner also controls
and owns, directly and indirectly, all of the pantship interests in Dorchester Minerals OperatiRgaihd its general partner. Dorchester
Minerals Operating LP owns working interests arteoproperties underlying our Net Profits Intergsts‘NPIs”), provides day-to-day
operational and administrative services to us amdyeneral partner, and is the employer of alldimployees who perform such services. In
report, the term "operating partnership” is usedraabbreviated reference to Dorchester Minerakr&@mg LP.

Our general partner and the operating partnersiipalaware limited partnerships, and the genexahprs of their general partners are
Delaware limited liability companies. These ensitend our Partnership were initially formed in Dmaber 2001 in connection with the
combination. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Dorchesténerals Oklahoma LP and its general partneiGiklshoma entities that acquired our
wholly owned acquisition subsidiary and its gengaatner by merger on December 31, 2009. On Matgt2010, we formed a new subsidi
and it acquired all of the outstanding partnershiprests in Maecenas Minerals LLP, a Texas limiiggoility partnership.

Our business may be described as the acquisitmeiship and administration of Royalty Propertied AIPIs. The Royalty Properties
consist of producing and nonproducing mineral, ltyyaverriding royalty, net profits, and leasehaiterests located in 574 counties and
parishes in 25 states. The NPIs represent netpiferriding royalty interests in various propestowned by the operating partnership.

Our partnership agreement requires that we dig&riuarterly an amount equal to all funds that @seive from the Royalty Properties ¢
the NPIs less certain expenses and reasonableesser

We intend to grow by acquiring additional oil aratural gas properties, subject to the limitatioasadibed below. The approval of the
holders of a majority of our outstanding commortairs required for our general partner to caust® @equire or obtain any oil and natural gas
property interest, unless the acquisition is commgletary to our business and is made either:

e in exchange for our limited partner interests|uding common units, not exceeding 20% of the camumits outstanding after
issuance; or

e in exchange for cash, if the aggregate cost pfamquisitions made for cash during the tweatventh period ending on the first to oc
of the execution of a definitive agreement for @exuisition or its consummation is no more than 16Pwur aggregate ca
distributions for the four most recent fiscal qeast

Unless otherwise approved by the holders of a ritgjof our common units, in the event that we acgproperties for a combination of
cash and limited partner interests, including commnits, (i) the cash component of the acquisitionsideration must be equal to or less than
5% of the aggregate cash distributions made byPautnership for the four most recent quarters @nthé amount of limited partnership
interests, including common units, to be issueslich acquisition, after giving effect to such issieg shall not exceed 10% of the common
units outstanding.






Credit Facilities and Financing Plans

We do not have a credit facility in place, nor de anticipate doing so. We do not anticipate inograny debt, other than trade debt
incurred in the ordinary course of our business. @utnership agreement prohibits us from incuriimdgbtedness, other than trade payables,
(i) in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate at amgrgtime; or (ii) which would constitute "acquisiti indebtedness" (as defined in Section 514
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedjder to avoid unrelated business taxable incfonéderal income tax purposes. We
may finance any growth of our business through &sétipns of oil and natural gas properties by iaguadditional limited partnership interests
or with cash, subject to the limits described abawe in our partnership agreement.

Under our partnership agreement, we may also fimauoc growth through the issuance of additionalrgaship securities, including
options, rights, warrants and appreciation righith wespect to partnership securities from timértee in exchange for the consideration and on
the terms and conditions established by our geparaher in its sole discretion. However, we mayissue limited partnership interests that
would represent over 20% of the outstanding limgadnership interests immediately after givingeffto such issuance or that would have
greater rights or powers than our common unitsauitithe approval of the holders of a majority of outstanding common units. Except in
connection with qualifying acquisitions, we do eatrently anticipate issuing additional partners$ggurities. We have an effective registra
statement on Form S-4 registering 5,000,000 comumits that may be offered and issued by the Pastiyefrom time to time in connection
with asset acquisitions or other business comhindtiansactions. At present, 2,565,000 units reraadilable.

Regulation

Many aspects of the production, pricing and marigetf crude oil and natural gas are regulated teri® and state agencies. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is unctarstant review for amendment or expansion, wiretuently increases the regulatory bur
on affected members of the industry.

Exploration and production operations are subjeettious types of regulation at the federal, séatet local levels. Such regulation
includes:

permits for the drilling of wells;

bonding requirements in order to drill or openatdls;

the location and number of wells;

the method of drilling and casing wells;

the surface use and restoration of properties wguch wells are drilled;
the plugging and abandonment of wells;

numerous federal and state safety requirements;

environmental requirements;

property taxes and severance taxes; and

specific state and federal income tax provisions.

QOil and natural gas operations are also subjecatious conservation laws and regulations. Thegelations govern the size of drilling &
spacing units or proration units and the densityells that may be drilled and the unitization oofing of oil and natural gas properties. In
addition, state conservation laws establish a maxirallowable production from oil and natural gadlsvérhese state laws also generally
prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas angpose certain requirements regarding the ratgtofiproduction. These regulations can limit
the amount of oil and natural gas that the opesatbour properties can produce.

The transportation of natural gas after sale byatpes of our properties is sometimes subject golegion by state authorities. The
interstate transportation of natural gas is sulipé&deral governmental regulation, including degian of tariffs and various other matters, by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Customers and Pricing
The pricing of oil and natural gas sales is pritgadetermined by supply and demand in the markegéand can fluctuate considerably. As

a royalty owner and non-operator, we have extrerimiyed access to timely information, involvemeand operational control over the
volumes of oil and natural gas produced and sotltthe terms and conditions on which such volumesraarketed and sold.




Since 2004 the operating partnership has sold ofott natural gas production to a Williams enfigurrently WPX Energy Marketing,
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of WPX Energy, Inor) a daily market price basis using a yearly @uttthat will continue through October
2012. The operating partnership frequently revialternative gas purchasers. We believe that treedbVilliams by the operating partnership
or the loss of any single customer would not hawgaterial adverse effect on us due to the avaitgluf alternative purchasers.

Competition

The energy industry in which we compete is sulliedtense competition among many companies, lavtel and smaller than we are,
many of which have financial and other resourcesigr than we have.

Business Opportunities Agreement

Pursuant to a business opportunities agreement@omyrour general partner, the general partneuo§eneral partner, the owners of the
general partner of our general partner (the “GRi¢&), and, in their individual capacities as offis of the general partner of our general
partner, William Casey McManemin, James E. RaleylrC. Allen, Jr., we have agreed that, except Withconsent of our general partner,
which it may withhold in its sole discretion, wellwiot engage in any business not permitted bypawtnership agreement, and we will have no
interest or expectancy in any business opportuhéydoes not consist exclusively of the oil anturaed gas business within a designated area
that includes portions of Texas County, Oklahoma &tevens County, Kansas. All opportunities thatartside the designated area or are not
oil and natural gas business activities are cadedunced opportunities.

The parties also have agreed that, as long astivitias of the general partner, the GP Partiestheir affiliates or manager designees are
conducted in accordance with specified standarda;eorenounced opportunities:

e our general partner, the GP Parties and theiiaa#ls or the manager designees will not be piitdddfrom engaging in the oil and
natural gas business or any other business, ewewlif activity is in direct or indirect competitiarith our business activities;

e affiliates of our general partner, the GP Pardied their affiliates and the manager designedswilhave to offer us any business
opportunity;

e we will have no interest or expectancy in anyihess opportunity pursued by affiliates of our gahpartner, the GP Parties or their
affiliates and the manager designees; and

e we waive any claim that any business opportymitisued by our general partner, the GP Partiesedr affiliates and the manager
designees constitutes a corporate opportunitystmatild have been presented to us.

The standards specified in the business opporésrétjreement generally provide that the GP Patidgheir affiliates and manager
designees must conduct their business throughshefutheir own personnel and assets and not hétluse of any personnel or assets of us
general partner or operating partnership. A manegsignee or personnel of a company in which afiljaéé of our general partner or any GP
Party or their affiliates has an interest or in @tha manager designee is an owner, director, manaaner or employee (except for our
general partner and its general partner and thésidiaries) is not allowed to usurp a businesodppity solely for his or her personal benefit,
as opposed to pursuing, for the benefit of the isgpaarty an opportunity in accordance with thec#fied standards.

In certain circumstances, if a GP Party or any islidny thereof, any officer of the general partoéour general partner or any of their
subsidiaries, or a manager of the general parthneunrogeneral partner that is an affiliate of a Bdtty signs a binding agreement to purchas
and natural gas interests, excluding oil and nagas working interests, then such party must pat# prior to the consummation of the
transactions so that we may determine whether tsuguthe purchase of the oil and natural gas isteirectly from the seller. If we do not
pursue the purchase of the oil and natural gasgsii® or fail to respond to the purchasing pangtice within the provided time, the
opportunity will also be considered a renouncedoopmity.

In the event any GP Party or one of their subsieliaaicquires an oil and natural gas interest, diofuoil and natural gas working interests,
in the designated area, it will offer to sell thé@serests to us within one month of completingakquisition. This obligation also applies to i
package of oil and natural gas interests, inclugihgnd natural gas working interests, if at |€23% of the net acreage of the package is w
the designated area; however, this obligation @o¢spply to interests purchased in a transactiomhich the procedures described above \
applied and followed by the applicable affiliate.

Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

Our operations do not directly involve the openagilorisks and uncertainties associated with dglior, and the production and



transportation of, oil and natural gas. Howevermay be indirectly affected by the operational sigkd uncertainties faced by the
operators of our properties, including the operppartnership, whose operations may be materialitaded, delayed or canceled as a result of
numerous factors, including:




the presence of unanticipated pressure or ireeiigls in formations;
accidents;

title problems;

weather conditions;

compliance with governmental requirements; and

shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment.

Also, the ability of the operators of our propestte market oil and natural gas production depemdsumerous factors, many of which are
beyond their control, including:

capacity and availability of oil and natural ggstems and pipelines;
effect of federal and state production and trartsgion regulations;
changes in supply and demand for oil and nagasj and
creditworthiness of the purchasers of oil andiratgas.

The occurrence of an operational risk or uncerydimat materially impacts the operations of therafigs of our properties could have a
material adverse effect on the amount that we vedai connection with our interests in productioonfi our properties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condittwnesult of operations.

In accordance with customary industry practicespvagntain insurance against some, but not allhefrisks to which our business expc
us. While we believe that we are reasonably insagadnst these risks, the occurrence of an uniddoes could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition or results of operations

Employees

As of February 23, 2012, the operating partnerbhip 21 full-time employees in our Dallas, Texascefand seven full-time employees in
field locations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business
Our cash distributions are highly dependent oneoitl natural gas prices, which have historically heery volatile.

Our quarterly cash distributions depend signifigaah the prices realized from the sale of oil aindparticular, natural gas. Historically,
the markets for oil and natural gas have been il®ktd may continue to be volatile in the futWearious factors that are beyond our control
will affect prices of oil and natural gas, such as:

e the worldwide and domestic supplies of oil anture gas;
the ability of the members of the OrganizatiorPetroleum Exporting Countries and others to agyesnd maintain oil prices and
production controls;

political instability or armed conflict in oil-pducing regions;
the price and level of foreign imports;

the level of consumer demand;

the price and availability of alternative fuels;

the availability of pipeline capacity;

weather conditions;

domestic and foreign governmental regulationstards; and
the overall economic environment.

Lower oil and natural gas prices may reduce thewenrnof oil and natural gas that is economic to paedand may reduce our revenues
operating income. The volatility of oil and natugals prices reduces the accuracy of estimatedwkfeash distributions to unitholders.




We do not control operations and development oRibigalty Properties or the properties underlying tiPls that the operating
partnership does not operate, which could impaetamount of our cash distributions.

As the owner of a fractional undivided mineral oyalty interest, we do not control the developnadrthe Royalty or NPI properties or t
volumes of oil and natural gas produced from thanal, our ability to influence development of nonproidg properties is severely limited.
Also, since one of our stated business objectiwés avoid the generation of unrelated businesablexincome, we are prohibited from
participation in the development of our properissa working interest or other expeimaring owner. The decision to explore or devehas«
properties, including infill drilling, exploratioaf horizons deeper or shallower than the currgmtbducing intervals, and application of
enhanced recovery techniques will be made by tleeadpr and other working interest owners of eadpeirty (including our lessees) and may
be influenced by factors beyond our control, inghgdout not limited to oil and natural gas pricieserest rates, budgetary considerations and
general industry and economic conditions.

Our unitholders are not able to influence or cdrttte operation or future development of the pripsrunderlying the NPIs. The operat
partnership is unable to influence significantlg tperations or future development of propertias ithdoes not operate. The operating
partnership and the other current operators opthperties underlying the NPIs are under no ohlligatto continue operating the underlying
properties. The operating partnership can selladrile properties underlying the NPIs that it opesaand relinquish the ability to control or
influence operations. Any such sale or transfertrals® simultaneously include the NPIs at a cowading price. Our unitholders do not have
the right to replace an operator.

Our lease bonus revenue depends in significant@athe actions of third parties, which are outsadeur control.

Significant portions of the Royalty Properties ardeased mineral interests. With limited exceptjoms have the right to grant leases of
these interests to third parties. We anticipateiwétg cash payments as bonus consideration fatigiathese leases in most instances. Our
ability to influence third parties' decisions tacbme our lessees with respect to these nonprodpcapgerties is severely limited, and those
decisions may be influenced by factors beyond outrol, including but not limited to oil and natugas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonriditions.

The operating partnership may transfer or abandoopprties that are subject to the NPIs.

Our general partner, through the operating partigrsnay at any time transfer all or part of thegarties underlying the NPIs. Our
unitholders are not entitled to vote on any transfewever, any such transfer must also simultasiganclude the NPIs at a corresponding
price.

The operating partnership or any transferee magddraany well or property if it reasonably belietleat the well or property can no
longer produce in commercially economic quantitiéss could result in termination of the NPIs reigtto the abandoned well.

Cash distributions are affected by production attieo costs, some of which are outside of our céntro

The cash available for distribution that comes fraum royalty and mineral interests, including thield| is directly affected by increases in
production costs and other costs. Some of theds aos outside of our control, including costsegfulatory compliance and severance and
other similar taxes. Other expenditures are didthiebusiness necessity, such as drilling additiargdis in response to the drilling activity of
others.

Our oil and natural gas reserves and the underlypngperties are depleting assets, and there aréditions on our ability to replace the

Our revenues and distributions depend in largegrathe quantity of oil and natural gas producednfiproperties in which we hold an
interest. Over time, all of our producing oil aratural gas properties will experience declinesrodpction due to depletion of their oil and
natural gas reservoirs, with the rates of declizging by property. Replacement of reserves to taairproduction levels requires maintena
development or exploration projects on existingperties, or the acquisition of additional propestie

The timing and size of maintenance, developmeeipforation projects will depend on the market g@siof oil and natural gas and on
other factors beyond our control. Many of the dedis regarding implementation of such projectsluding drilling or exploration on any
unleased and undeveloped acreage, will be madeifdyparties. In addition, development possibititiey the operating partnership in the
Hugoton field are limited by the developed naturéhat field and by regulatory restrictions.

Our ability to increase reserves through futureuggitions is limited by restrictions on our usecakh and limited partnership interests for
acquisitions and by our general partner's obligattiiouse all reasonable efforts such as NPIs taavaelated business taxable income. In
addition, the ability of affiliates of our genegsrtner to pursue business opportunities for thwim accounts without tendering them to us in



certain circumstances may reduce the acquisitioesepted to us for consideration.




Drilling activities on our properties may not begatuctive, which could have an adverse effect arrdutesults of operations and financial
condition.

The operating partnership may undertake drillinivdes in limited circumstances on the propertigglerlying the NPIs, and third parties
may undertake drilling activities on our other pedes. Any increases in our reserves will comenfguch drilling activities or from
acquisitions.

Drilling involves a wide variety of risks, includirthe risk that no commercially productive oil @tural gas reservoirs will be encounte
The cost of drilling, completing and operating wé# often uncertain, and drilling operations maydelayed or canceled as a result of a variety
of factors, including:

pressure or irregularities in formations;
equipment failures or accidents;

unexpected drilling conditions;

shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment;
adverse weather conditions; and

disputes with drill-site owners.

Future drilling activities on our properties may be successful. If these activities are unsucoédsis failure could have an adverse
effect on our future results of operations andrfaial condition. In addition, under the terms o thiPIs, the costs of unsuccessful future
drilling on the working interest properties tha¢ aubject to the NPIs will reduce amounts payablestunder the NPIs by 96.97% of these
costs.

Our ability to identify and capitalize on acquisitis is limited by contractual provisions and subsitel competition.

Our partnership agreement limits our ability towiog oil and natural gas properties in the futesgpecially for consideration other than
limited partnership interests. Because of the Atiohs on our use of cash for acquisitions andwrability to accumulate cash for acquisition
purposes, we may be required to attempt to effaghiaitions with our limited partnership interedtwever, sellers of properties we would
like to acquire may be unwilling to take our lindtpartnership interests in exchange for properties.

Our partnership agreement obligates our generatgrato use all reasonable efforts to avoid geimggainrelated business taxable income.
Accordingly, to acquire working interests we woutlave to arrange for them to be converted into éadiexy royalty interests, net profits
interests, or another type of interest that do¢gyanerate unrelated business taxable income. Phiries may be less likely to deal with us
than with a purchaser to which such a conditionldowt apply. These restrictions could preventromfpursuing or completing business
opportunities that might benefit us and our unitdleo$, particularly unitholders who are not tax-egemvestors.

The duty of affiliates of our general partner tegant acquisition opportunities to our Partnerghlpnited, pursuant to the terms of the
business opportunities agreement. Accordingly,ri®ss opportunities that could potentially be puddoyeus might not necessarily come to our
attention, which could limit our ability to pursaebusiness strategy of acquiring oil and naturalgyaperties.

We compete with other companies and producersciuiaitions of oil and natural gas interests. Mahthese competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resoutices we do.

Any future acquisitions will involve risks that ¢cdadversely affect our business, which our unileod generally will not have the
opportunity to evaluate.

Our current strategy contemplates that we may ghoaugh acquisitions. We expect to participateigtdssions relating to potential
acquisition and investment opportunities. If we siommate any additional acquisitions, our capitéitizeand results of operations may change
significantly, and our unitholders will not havestbpportunity to evaluate the economic, financial ather relevant information that we will
consider in connection with the acquisition, unlggsterms of the acquisition require approvalaf wnitholders. Additionally, our unitholders
will bear 100% of the dilution from issuing new comn units while receiving essentially 96% of thaédfé as 4% of the benefit goes to our
general partner.

Acquisitions and business expansions involve numeerisks, including assimilation difficulties, unfidiarity with new assets or new
geographic areas and the diversion of managenattetstion from other business concerns. In additioe success of any acquisition will
depend on a number of factors, including the aghititestimate accurately the recoverable volumessdrves, rates of future production and
future net revenues attributable to reserves amddess possible environmental liabilities. Ourere\and analysis of properties prior to any
acquisition will be subject to uncertainties anohgstent with industry practice, may be limiteds@ope. We may not be able to successfully



integrate any oil and natural gas properties thehwaqguire into our operations, or we may not aehdsired profitability objectives.




A natural disaster or catastrophe could damage loies, gathering systems and other facilities thextvice our properties, which could
substantially limit our operations and adverselfeaf our cash flow.

If gathering systems, pipelines or other facilitieat serve our properties are damaged by anyalatisaster, accident, catastrophe or other
event, our income could be significantly interruptény event that interrupts the production, gatigeor transportation of our oil and natural
gas, or which causes us to share in significan¢edipures not covered by insurance, could adverisghact the market price of our limited
partnership units and the amount of cash avaifabldistribution to our unitholders. We do not gabusiness interruption insurance.

A significant portion of the properties subjectie NPIs are geographically concentrated, whichldmause net proceeds payable under
the NPIs to be impacted by regional events.

A significant portion of the properties subjectie NPIs are all natural gas properties that aratém almost exclusively in the Hugoton
field in Oklahoma and Kansas. Because of this ggagc concentration, any regional events, includiatural disasters that increase costs,
reduce availability of equipment or supplies, resldemand or limit production may impact the netpsuls payable under the NPIs more than
if the properties were more geographically divéesif

The number of prospective natural gas purchasefsrathods of delivery are considerably less thanlevotherwise exist from a more
geographically diverse group of properties. Assalte natural gas sales after gathering and corajare$end to be sold to one buyer in each
state, thereby increasing credit risk.

Under the terms of the NPIs, much of the econoislicaf the underlying properties is passed alonggo

Under the terms of the NPIs, virtually all costatttmay be incurred in connection with the propsrtiecluding overhead costs that are not
subject to an annual reimbursement limit, are destlias production costs or excess production @oststermining amounts payable to us.
Therefore, to the extent of the revenues from tireléned properties, we bear 96.97% of the codtseofvorking interest properties. If costs
exceed revenues, we do not receive any payments tinel NPIs. However, except as described belowareaot required to pay any excess
costs.

The terms of the NPIs provide for excess costsdhahot be charged currently because they exceeshtuevenues to be accumulated
charged in future periods, which could result imosreceiving any payments under the NPIs untpbr uncharged costs have been
recovered by the operating partnership.

Damages associated with the production and gatlgepinour oil and natural gas properties could affear cash flow.

The operating partnership owns and operates gatheyistems and compression facilities. Casualgelsr damages from these
operations would be production costs under thegerfithe NPIs and could adversely affect our césh. f

We may indirectly experience costs from repairaplacement of aging equipment.

Some of the operating partnership's current workiterest wells were drilled and have been prodysince prior to 1954. The 132-mile
Oklahoma gas pipeline gathering system was orilyifastalled in or about 1948 and because of itsiagn need of periodic repairs and
upgrades. Should major components of this systeuine significant repairs or replacement, the ofeggpartnership may incur substantial
capital expenditures in the operation of the Okiaagroperties, which, as production costs, woutldice our cash flow from these properties.

Our cash flow is subject to operating hazards anfbreseen interruptions for which we may not bbyfinlsured.

Neither we nor the operating partnership are fulbured against certain risks, either because isistitance is not available or because of
high premium costs. Operations that affect the @riigs are subject to all of the risks normallyidient to the oil and natural gas business,
including blowouts, cratering, explosions and padln and other environmental damage, any of whakiatresult in substantial decreases in
the cash flow from our royalty interests and otihégrests due to injury or loss of life, damagetalestruction of wells, production facilities or
other property, cleanp responsibilities, regulatory investigations gethalties and suspension of operations. Any ungusaosts relating to tl
properties underlying the NPIs will be deducte@asoduction cost in calculating the net proceeaig@ple to us.

Governmental policies, laws and regulations cowdstidhan adverse impact on our business and castfibdisons.
Our business and the properties in which we hdlet@sts are subject to federal, state and loca &wd regulations relating to the oil and

natural gas industry as well as regulations regattinsafety matters. These laws and regulationdaga a significant impact on production and
costs of production. For example, both Oklahomalkéaasas, where properties that are subject to s Blre located, have the ability, directly



or indirectly, to limit production from those pragies, and such limitations or changes in thos&ditions could negatively impact us in
future.




As another example, Oklahoma regulations curreetiyire administrative hearings to change the autnaton of the operating
partnership’s gas production wells from one welldach 640 acres in the Guymon-Hugoton field. Presly, certain interested parties have
sought regulatory changes in Oklahoma for "infitlf"increased density drilling similar to that winis available in Kansas, which allows one
well for each 320 acres. Should Oklahoma changexitging regulations to readily permit infill diilg, it is possible that a number of
producers will commence increased density drillimgreas adjacent to the properties in Oklahomiatteasubject to the NPIs. If the operating
partnership or other operators of our propertieaatado the same, our production levels relatinthése properties may decrease, or mineral
owners may demand increased density drilling. @apitpenditures relating to increased density erptioperties underlying the NPIs would
deducted from amounts payable to us under the NPIs.

Environmental costs and liabilities and changingieonmental regulation could affect our cash flow.

As with other companies engaged in the ownershibpgaduction of oil and natural gas, we always expe have some risk of exposure
environmental costs and liabilities because théscassociated with environmental compliance or diation could reduce the amount we
would receive from our properties. The properties/hich we hold interests are subject to extenfdderal, state, tribal and local regulatory
requirements relating to environmental affairs,ltheand safety and waste management. Governmeuttedrities have the power to enforce
compliance with applicable regulations and permitsich could increase production costs on our pitiggeand affect their cash flow. Third
parties may also have the right to pursue legaasto enforce compliance. It is likely that exgitares in connection with environmental
matters, individually or as part of normal capéapenditure programs, will affect the net cash ffowmn our properties. Future environmental
law developments, such as stricter laws, regulat@renforcement policies, could significantly imase the costs of production from our
properties and reduce our cash flow.

The potential adoption of federal and state hydiafracturing legislation could delay or restricedelopment of our oil and natural gas
properties.

During the last Congressional Session, severa Widlre proposed that would have subjected the gsaafehydraulic fracturing to
regulation under the Safe Drinking Water Act. $amlegislation may be proposed by the current Cesg In addition, the EPA’s Office of
Research and Development (ORD) is conducting asfitestudy to investigate the possible relatiapstbetween hydraulic fracturing and
drinking water. The ORD expects to have the ingtaldy results available by late 2012 and finalitesy 2014. Hydraulic fracturing involves
the injection of water, sand and chemicals undessure into rock formations to stimulate productibime use of hydraulic fracturing is
necessary to produce commercial quantities of coildend natural gas from many reservoirs. Althoitgh not possible at this time to predict
the final outcome of the ORD’s study and any résgltegislation, any new federal restrictions omifaulic fracturing could significantly
increase operating, capital and compliance cosish ost increases could delay or restrict devedoprny operators of our oil and natural gas
properties.

Additionally, certain states in which our propestere located, including Texas and Wyoming, hawptatl, and other states are
considering adopting, regulations that could impmeee stringent permitting, public disclosure arellwonstruction requirements on
hydraulic-fracturing operations or otherwise seekdn fracturing activities altogether. For examflexas adopted a law in June 2011
requiring disclosure to the Railroad Commissioffekas, or the RCT, and the public disclosure diageinformation regarding the
components used in the hydraufiacturing process. In addition to state lawsaldand use restrictions, such as city ordinancesy, restrict o
prohibit the performance of well drilling in genkeand/or hydraulic fracturing in particular. Iretlevent state, local, or municipal legal
restrictions are adopted in areas where our priggegite located, the cost of the operators of dama natural gas properties complying with
such requirements may be significant in naturectvinnay cause delays or curtailment in the purdugixploration, development, or production
activities, and perhaps even preclude the oper&tmrsdrilling wells.

The adoption of climate change legislation by Cesgrcould result in increased operating costs attliced demand for the oil and
natural gas production from our properties.

To date, Congress has not passed a bill specifiadiiressing greenhouse gas (GHG) regulation. Memvéhe EPA has issued greenhouse
gas monitoring and reporting regulations that wetat effect January 1, 2010, and require reportipgegulated facilities by March 2011 and
annually thereafter. Beyond measuring and reparthg EPA issued an “Endangerment Finding” undeti@e 202(a) of the Clean Air Act,
concluding greenhouse gas pollution threatens tibigphealth and welfare of current and future gatiens. The EPA has issued final
regulations requiring petroleum and natural gasatpes meeting a certain emission threshold tontepeir greenhouse gas emissions to the
EPA. The EPA has indicated that it will use datlected through the reporting rules to decide Wwheto promulgate future greenhouse gas
emission limits. Although it is not possible atghime to predict whether or when Congress maypaaimate change legislation, any laws or
regulations that may be adopted to restrict or ceddmissions of GHGs could require the operatimnpeship and oil and natural gas opera
that develop our properties to incur increased atpeg costs and could have an adverse effect ormadeéror the oil and natural gas produced
from our properties.



Our oil and natural gas reserve data and future metenue estimates are uncertain.

Estimates of proved reserves and related futureewenues are projections based on engineeringaddteeports of independent consul
petroleum engineers hired for that purpose. Thege® of estimating reserves requires substantighjent, resulting in imprecise
determinations. Different reserve engineers mayentifferent estimates of reserve quantities arated|revenue based on the same data.
Therefore, those estimates should not be consasideing accurate estimates of the current magdeéof our proved reserves. If these
estimates prove to be inaccurate, our businesshmaylversely affected by lower revenues. We aszttl by changes in oil and natural gas
prices. Oil prices and natural gas prices may e&pee inverse price changes.
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Risks Inherent In An Investment In Our Common Units
Cost reimbursement due our general partner mayubstantial and reduce our cash available to disitédto our unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common shite reimburse the general partner and its a##idor reasonable costs and expenses
of management. The reimbursement of expenses aduwlkersely affect our ability to pay cash distribns to our unitholders. Our general
partner has sole discretion to determine the amaoiuthiese expenses, subject to the annual linb&6fof an amount primarily based on our
distributions to partners for that fiscal year. Bmaual limit includes carry-forward and cabgek features, which could allow costs in a yei
exceed what would otherwise be the annual reimbugsélimit. In addition, our general partner argddffiliates may provide us with other
services for which we will be charged fees as deiteed by our general partner.

Our net income as reported for tax and financiaksment purposes may differ significantly from cash flow that is used to determine
cash available for distributions.

Net income as reported for financial statement pseg is presented on an accrual basis in confomitityaccounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Unitholld tax statements are calculated based on aijdidax conventions, and taxable income
as calculated for each year will be allocated amaritholders who hold units on the last day of eexcinth. Distributions, however, are
calculated on the basis of actual cash receipg)gds in cash reserves, and disbursements dugrmnglégvant reporting period. Consequently,
due to timing differences between the receipt otpeds of production and the point in time at whighproduction giving rise to those
proceeds actually occurs, net income reported oransolidated financial statements and on unirokt1's will not reflect actual cash
distributions during that reporting period.

Our unitholders have limited voting rights and dat control our general partner, and their ability temove our general partner is limit

Our unitholders have only limited voting rights wratters affecting our business. The general padheur general partner manages our
activities. Our unitholders only have the righarmually elect the managers comprising the Advi€twynmittee of the Board of Managers of
the general partner of our general partner. Ouhotders do not have the right to elect the othanagers of the general partner of our general
partner on an annual or any other basis.

Our general partner may not be removed as our gepartner except upon approval by the affirmatiete of the holders of at least a
majority of our outstanding common units (includicgmmon units owned by our general partner andfitigates), subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions. Our general partner and itdiatés do not own sufficient common units to bdeao prevent its removal as general partner,
but they do own sufficient common units to makermaoval of our general partner by other unithadddifficult.

These provisions may discourage a person or gnaup &ttempting to remove our general partner ouiegontrol of us without the
consent of our general partner. As a result ofaheevisions, the price at which our common umslé may be lower because of the absen
reduction of a takeover premium in the trading gric

The control of our general partner may be transéerto a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner may withdraw or transfer itsegel partner interest to a third party in a mexyen a sale of all or substantially all of
its assets without the consent of our unithold®tber than some transfer restrictions agreed tangnttee owners of our general partner relating
to their interests in our general partner, thempoigestriction in our partnership agreement oentlise for the benefit of our limited partners on
the ability of the owners of our general partnetrémsfer their ownership interests to a third yparhe new owner of the general partner would
then be in a position to replace the managemeotioPartnership with its own choices.

Our general partner and its affiliates have cort8iof interests, which may permit our general partand its affiliates to favor their own
interests to the detriment of unitholders.

We and our general partner and its affiliates steand therefore compete for, the time and effogesferal partner personnel who provide
services to us. Officers of our general partnerigndffiliates do not, and are not required teergppany specified percentage or amount of time
on our business. In fact, our general partner lgyato manage our Partnership in the best intei@our unitholders, but it also has a duty to
operate its business for the benefit of its pasgtn8ome of our officers are also involved in managet and ownership roles in other oil and
natural gas enterprises and have similar dutiiseim and devote time to their businesses. Becaiese shared officers function as both our
representatives and those of our general partreeitaaffiliates and of third parties, conflictsinferest could arise between our general partner
and its affiliates, on the one hand, and us ormitholders, on the other, or between us or outhotders on the one hand and the third parties
for which our officers also serve management fumsi As a result of these conflicts, our generdinea and its affiliates may favor their own
interests over the interests of unitholders.
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We may issue additional securities, diluting ouithwiders' interests.

We can and may issue additional common units alner @apital securities representing limited paghigr units, including options,
warrants, rights, appreciation rights and secwritvéh rights to distributions and allocations weiiguidation equal or superior to our common
units; however, a majority of the unitholders maigprove such issuance if (i) the partnership stesrio be issued will have greater rights or
powers than our common units or (ii) if after gigiaffect to such issuance, such newly issued patiipesecurities represent over 20% of the
outstanding limited partnership interests.

If we issue additional common units, it will redumer unitholders' proportionate ownership intemests. This could cause the market p
of the common units to fall and reduce the per casth distributions paid to our unitholders. Iniéidd, if we issued limited partnership units
with voting rights superior to the common unitscauld adversely affect our unitholders' voting pow

Our unitholders may not have limited liability imet circumstances described below and may be lfablde return of certain distribution

Under Delaware law, our unitholders could be hidlé for our obligations to the same extent asreegal partner if a court determined
that the right of unitholders to remove our genegratner or to take other action under our partripragreement constituted participation in the
“control" of our business.

Our general partner generally has unlimited lityifor the obligations of our Partnership, suchitaslebts and environmental liabiliti
except for those contractual obligations of ourtiRaship that are expressly made without recourslee general partner.

In addition, Section 1807 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Parshgs Act provides that, under certain circumstan®
unitholder may be liable for the amount of disttibo for a period of three years from the dateisfribution.

Because we conduct our business in various sthegws of those states may pose similar riskaitaunitholders. To the extent to which
we conduct business in any state, our unitholdégéinbe held liable for our obligations as if thegre general partners if a court or
government agency determined that we had not cenhplith that state's partnership statute, or Hitsgpf unitholders constituted participation
in the "control" of our business under that stgtaitnership statute. In some of the states in lwhie conduct business, the limitations on the
liability of limited partners for the obligationd a limited partnership have not been clearly disthbd.

We are dependent upon key personnel, and the iass\dces of any of our key personnel could adgraffect our operations.

Our continued success depends to a consideratdntaxton the abilities and efforts of the senionagement of our general partner,
particularly William Casey McManemin, its Chief Exgive Officer, James E. Raley, its Chief Operatdficer, and H. C. Allen, Jr., its Chief
Financial Officer. The loss of the services of afiyhese key personnel could have a material adwffsct on our results of operations. We
have not obtained insurance or entered into empboyrmagreements with any of these key personnel.

We are dependent on service providers who assistthroviding Schedule K-1 tax statements tounitholders.

There are a very limited number of service firmet tturrently perform the detailed computations eee® provide each unitholder with
estimated depletion and other tax information sisaighe unitholder in various United States incdeecomputations. There are also very few
publicly traded limited partnerships that need ¢hesrvices. As a result, the future costs and tivess$ of providing Schedule Ktax statemen
to our unitholders is uncertain.

Tax Risks

The tax consequences to a unitholder of the owipeestd sale of common units will depend in partlom unitholder’s tax circumstances.
Each unitholder should, therefore, consult sucttheider’'s own tax advisor about the federal, statel local tax consequences of the
ownership of common units.

We have not received a ruling or assurances fram RS or any state or local taxing authority on angtters affecting us.

We have not requested, and will not request, aliygfrom the Internal Revenue Service, or IRSaoy state or local taxing authority w
respect to owning and disposing of our common writsny other matter. It may be necessary to rés@tiministrative or court proceedings in
an effort to sustain some or all of those conclusior positions taken or expressed by us, and sorak of those conclusions or positions
ultimately may not be sustained. Our unitholders general partner will bear, directly or indirectilge costs of any contest with the IRS or
other taxing authority.
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We will be subject to federal income tax and pdgsibrtain state corporate income or franchise aieve are classified as a corporation
and not as a partnership for federal income taxpmses.

As stated above, we have not requested, and willeguest, any ruling from the IRS as to our statia partnership for federal income tax
purposes. If the IRS were to challenge our fedarame tax status, such a challenge could resalhiaudit of our unitholders’ tax returns and
adjustments to items on their tax returns thauarelated to their ownership of our common unitsadidition, our unitholders would bear the
cost of any expenses incurred in connection witkyxamination of their personal tax returns.

If we were taxable as a corporation for federabine tax purposes in any taxable year, our incomiesglosses and deductions would be
reflected on our tax return rather than being matis®ugh proportionately to our unitholders, and wet income would be taxed at corporate
rates. In addition, some or all of the distribuanade to our unitholders would be treated as diddncome without offset for depletion, and
distributions would be reduced as a result of duefal, state and local taxes paid by us.

If we were taxable as a corporation for federabine tax purposes, we may also be subject to addltgiate-level corporate income or
franchise taxes.

The IRS could reallocate items of income, gainudédn and loss between transferors and transfeocde®mmon units if the IRS does not
accept our monthly convention for allocating suighmis.

In general, each of our items of income, gain, byss deduction will, for federal income tax purpmdee determined annually, and one
twelfth of each annual amount will be allocatedhiose unitholders who hold common units on theBasiness day of each month in that year.
In certain circumstances we may make these allmtain connection with extraordinary or nonrecigravents on a more frequent basis. As a
result, transferees of our common units may becatld items of our income, gain, loss and deducgatized by us prior to the date of their
acquisition of our common units. There is no specitithority addressing the utilization of this m&d of allocating items of income, gain, loss
and deduction by a publicly traded partnership sagchs between transferors and transferees ajritsnon units. If this method is determined
to be an unreasonable method of allocation, owmnrg gain, loss and deduction would be reallocatedng our unitholders and our general
partner, and our unitholders may have more taxableme or less taxable loss. Our general partnautisorized to revise our method of
allocation between transferors and transfereeselisas among our other unitholders whose commats wtherwise vary during a taxable
period, to conform to a method permitted or requivg the Internal Revenue Code and the regulatomglings promulgated thereunder.

Our unitholders may not be able to deduct losseibatable to their common units.

Any losses relating to our unitholders’ common simiill be losses related to portfolio income aneirtlability to use such losses may be
limited.

Our unitholders’ partnership tax information may bedited.

We will furnish our unitholders with a Schedule Kak statement that sets forth their allocable eslofiincome, gains, losses and
deductions. In preparing this schedule, we will uagous accounting and reporting conventions aribus depreciation and amortization
methods we have adopted. This schedule may nat gie¢sult that conforms to statutory or regulateguirements or to administrative
pronouncements of the IRS. Further, our tax retoay be audited, and any such audit could resw@hiaudit of our unitholders’ individual
income tax returns as well as increased liabilfitegdaxes because of adjustments resulting fragratidit. An audit of our unitholders’ returns
also could be triggered if the tax information tielg to their common units is not consistent whb Schedule K-1 that we are required to
provide to the IRS.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income @ tagable loss with respect to their common uffitisd IRS does not respect our
method for determining the adjusted tax basis eif ttommon units.

We have adopted a reporting convention that widld@ our unitholders to track the basis of thediviidual common units or unit groups
and use this basis in calculating their basis adfjests under Section 743 of the Internal Revenwe@md gain or loss on the sale of common
units. This method does not comply with an IRSngilihat requires a portion of the combined tax$agall common units to be allocated to
each of the common units owned by a unitholder upeale or disposition of less than all of the canmnits and may be challenged by the
IRS. If such a challenge is successful, our uniteid may have to recognize more taxable incomessrthxable loss with respect to common
units disposed of and common units they continusotd.

Tax-exempt investors may recognize unrelated bssitexable income.

Generally, unrelated business taxable income, oFIU&n arise from a trade or business unrelatede@xempt purposes of the tax-



exempt entity that is regularly carried on by eitthee tax-exempt entity or a partnership in which tax-exempt entity is a partner.
However, UBTI does not apply to interest incomgatbes (including overriding royalties) or net fits interests, whether the royalties or net
profits are measured by production or by grossxatle income from the property. Pursuant to tleeipions of our partnership agreement,
general partner shall use all reasonable effontsdwent us from realizing income that would
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constitute UBTI. In addition, our general partreeprohibited from incurring certain types and antswf indebtedness and from directly
owning working interests or cost bearing interestd, in the event that any of our assets becomkingpinterests or cost bearing interests, is
required to assign such interests to the opera@mnership subject to the reservation of a nefitproverriding royalty interest. However, it is
possible that we may realize income that would titwts UBTI in an effort to maximize unitholder weg.

Tax consequences of certain NPIs are uncertain.

We are prohibited from owning working interestscost-bearing interests. At the time of the creatibthe Minerals NPI, we assigned to
the operating partnership all rights in any suchking interests or cost-bearing interests that magitnsequently be created from the mineral
properties that were and are subject of the Migatl. As additional working interests and othestdmearing interests are created out of such
mineral properties, they are owned by the opergiantnership pursuant to such original assignneerd,we have executed various documents
since the creation of the Minerals NPI to confinnels treatment under the original assignment. Te&tinent could be characterized differently
by the IRS, and in such a case we are unable thgbrevith certainty, all of the income tax consequaes relating to the Minerals NPI as it
relates to such working interests and other coatibg interests.

Our unitholders may not be entitled to deductiarspercentage depletion with respect to our oil axadural gas interests.

Our unitholders will be entitled to deductions fbe greater of either cost depletion or (if otheevallowable) percentage depletion with
respect to the oil and natural gas interests oviayags. However, percentage depletion is generabiylable to a unitholder only if he qualifies
under the independent producer exemption contam#te Internal Revenue Code. For this purposéndependent producer is a person not
directly or indirectly involved in the retail sabé oil, natural gas, or derivative products or tiperation of a major refinery. If a unitholder does
not qualify under the independent producer exemptie generally will be restricted to deductionsdzhon cost depletion.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income @& tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogsiccept our method of allocating
depletion deductions.

The Internal Revenue Code requires that income, ¢rz8s and deduction attributable to appreciatedkpreciated property that is
contributed to a partnership in exchange for angaship interest in the partnership must be alkxtab that the contributing partner is charged
with, or benefits from, unrealized gain or unreatizoss, referred to as “Built-in Gain” and “Buiit-Loss,” respectively, associated with the
property at the time of its contribution to thetparship. Our partnership agreement provides tteaatjusted tax basis of the oil and natura
properties contributed to us is allocated to thetiiouting partners for the purpose of separatelgdnining depletion deductions. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale of property contriloute us will be allocated to the partners that dbated the property, in proportion to their
percentage interest in the contributed propertyake into account any Built-in Gain or Built-in 5 This method of allocating Built-in Gain
and Built-in Loss is not specifically permitted byited States Treasury regulations, and the IRS chajlenge this method. Such a challenge,
if successful, could cause our unitholders to recagmore taxable income or less taxable loss congoing basis in respect of their common
units.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income o tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogsiccept our method of
determining a unitholder's share of the basis atmership property.

Our general partner utilizes a method of calcugagiach unitholder's share of the basis of partigemioperty that results in an aggregate
basis for depletion purposes that reflects thelmse price of common units as paid by the unitholfleis method is not specifically authori:
under applicable Treasury regulations, and thert®$ challenge this method. Such a challenge, fesgful, could cause our unitholders to
recognize more taxable income or less taxabledossn ongoing basis in respect of their commorsunit

The ratio of the amount of taxable income that ballallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ctmdt will be distributed to a unitholder
is uncertain, and cash distributed to a unitholdeay not be sufficient to pay tax on the income Neeate to a unitholder.

The amount of taxable income realized by a unitkioldill be dependent upon a number of factors iiclg: (i) the amount of taxable
income recognized by us; (ii) the amount of anyngatognized by us that is attributable to specifiset sales that may be wholly or partially
attributable to Built-in Gain and the resultingoaltion of such gain to a unitholder, dependinghenasset being sold; (iii) the amount of basis
adjustment pursuant to the Internal Revenue Codiade to a unitholder based on the purchase jfoicany common units and the amount
which such price was greater or less than a unidd proportionate share of inside tax basis ofamsets attributable to the common units
when the common units were purchased; and (ivirte#hod of depletion available to a unitholder. Efiere, it is not possible for us to predict
the ratio of the amount of taxable income that dlallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ¢hahwill be distributed to a unitholder.
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A unitholder may lose his status as a partner afRartnership for federal income tax purposes ifliéreds our common units to a short
seller to cover a short sale of such common units.

If a unitholder loans his common units to a shelies to cover a short sale of common units, he bregonsidered as having disposed of
his ownership of those common units for federabime tax purposes. If so, the unitholder would may&r be a partner of our Partnership for
tax purposes with respect to those common unitagtine period of the loan and may recognize gaioss from the disposition. As a result,
during this period, any of our income, gain, lossleduction with respect to those common units wadt be reportable, and any cash
distributions received for those common units wdugdully taxable and may be treated as ordinacgrime.

If we are not notified (either directly or throughbroker) of a sale or other transfer of commontsjrsome distributions and federal
income tax information or reports with respect tels units may not be provided to the purchasertbeotransferee of the units and may
instead continue to be provided to the originahiséeror.

If our transfer agent or any other nominee holdiommmon units on behalf of a partner is not timedyifred of a sale or other transfer of
common units, and a proper transfer of ownershiptgecorded on the appropriate books and recease distributions and federal income
tax information or reports with respect to thesmgmn units may not be made or provided to the femes of the units and may instead
continue to be made or provided to the originaigfaror. Notwithstanding a transferee's failuresteive distributions and federal income tax
information or reports from us with respect to thesits, the IRS may contend that such transferagoartner for federal income tax purposes
and that some allocations of income, gain, losgediuction by us should have been reported by saolferee. Alternatively, the IRS may
contend that the transferor continues to be a paftr federal income tax purposes and that alionatof income, gain, loss or deduction by us
should have been reported by such transferorelfrdmsferor is not treated as a partner for fédiecame tax purposes, any cash distributions
received by such transferor with respect to thesfierred units following the transfer would be yuthxable as ordinary income to the transft

A sale or exchange of 50% or more of the totalr@gts in our capital and profits within a 12-momériod could result in adverse tax
consequences to a unitholder.

We will terminate for federal income tax purpodethére is a sale or exchange of 50% or more ofdted interests in our capital and
profits within a 12-month period. A termination wduesult in the closing of our taxable year farratholder. As a result, if a unitholder has a
different taxable year than we have, he may beiredto include his allocable share of our incogedn, loss, deduction, credits and other
items from both the taxable year ending prior ®ykar of our termination and the short taxable geding at the time of our termination in
same taxable year. A termination also could réayenalties if we were unable to determine thattdrmination occurred.

Foreign, state and local taxes could be withheldhorounts otherwise distributable to a unitholder.

A unitholder may be required to file tax returnsldre subject to tax liability in the foreign, statelocal jurisdictions where he resides and
in each state or local jurisdiction in which we bassets or otherwise do business. We also masgbé@ed to withhold state income tax from
distributions otherwise payable to a unitholde atate income tax may be withheld by others omltgypayments to us.

Certain U.S. federal income tax deductions curreatiailable with respect to oil and natural gas lexption and development may be
eliminated as a result of future legislation.

Both the Proposed Fiscal Year 2012 Federal Budutttze proposed American Jobs Act of 2011 incluatenttial legislation that would,
enacted into law, make significant changes to dinB&ates tax laws, including the elimination oftaer key U.S. federal income tax incentives
currently available to oil and natural gas explomagctivities. These changes include, but ardinuted to, (i) the repeal of the percentage
depletion allowance for oil and natural gas prdpsrt(ii) the elimination of current deductions fotangible drilling and development costs,

(iii) the repeal of the domestic manufacturing teeduction for oil and natural gas companies, avidafi extension of the amortization period
for certain geological and geophysical expenditultds unclear whether any such changes will beceagd or how soon any such changes could
become effective. The passage of any legislatiamrasult of these proposals or any other simhanges in U.S. federal income tax laws ct
eliminate certain tax deductions that are curreanigilable to our unitholders and to oil and ndtges operators that we rely upon to develop
our properties. Such legislation or changes coafghtively impact both our unitholders and our Ranghip financially.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report that are ndbhial facts (including any statements concermglams and objectives of management for
future operations or economic performance, or apsioms or forecasts related thereto), are forwankihg statements. These statements can
be identified by the use of forward-looking termiogy including "may,” "believe," "will," "expect,"anticipate,” "estimate,"” "continue" or
other similar words. These statements discussdgypectations, contain projections of resultspafrations or of financial condition or state
other forward-looking information.
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These forward-looking statements are made based mamagement's current plans, expectations, estimnassumptions and beliefs
concerning future events impacting us and, theegfiovolve a number of risks and uncertainties.dAfgtion that forward-looking statements
are not guarantees and that actual results coff&t diaterially from those expressed or impliedrie forward-looking statements for a number
of important reasons, including those discusseautidisk Factors" and elsewhere in this report.

You should read these statements carefully bedheyemay discuss our expectations about our futareormance, contain projections of
our future operating results or our future finahciandition, or state other forward-looking infortiwan. Before you invest, you should be aware
that the occurrence of any of the events hereiordesl in "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this repould substantially harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition amat ipon the occurrence of any of these eventdrading price of our common units could
decline, and you could lose all or part of yourdstment.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Facilities

Our office in Dallas consists of 11,847 square tddeased office space. The operating partnersiips a field office in Hooker,
Oklahoma.

Properties
We own two categories of properties: Royalty Prtpsrand Net Profits Interests (“NPIs”).
Royalty Properties

We own Royalty Properties representing producirdjraanproducing mineral, royalty, overriding royalhet profits and leasehold intere
in properties located in 574 counties and parigh@% states. Acreage amounts listed herein reptesg best estimates based on information
provided to us as a royalty owner. Due to the $icamt number of individual deeds, leases and siniiistruments involved in the acquisition
and development of the Royalty Properties by usuompredecessors, acreage amounts are subjedrngelks new information becomes
available. In addition, as a royalty owner, ouresmscto information concerning activity and operaion the Royalty Properties is limited. M
of our producing properties are subject to olddsaend other contracts pursuant to which we aremtgted to well information. Some of our
newer leases provide for access to technical datather information. We may have limited accessublic data in some areas through third
party subscription services. Consequently, thetexamber of wells producing from or drilling on tR®yalty Properties is not determinable.
The primary manner by which we will become awaradfvity on the Royalty Properties is the receiptlivision orders or other
correspondence from operators or purchasers.

Acreage Summary

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ111, a summary of our gross and net acres, wipgleable, of mineral, royalty,
overriding royalty and leasehold interests, andragilation of the number of counties and parishresstates in which these interests are
located. The majority of our net mineral acresiarieased. Acreage amounts may not add across dwetiapping ownership among
categories.

Overriding
Mineral Royalty Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 25 18 17 8 25
Number of Counties/Parish 46E 19C 137 34 574
Gross Acres 2,308,00! 617,00( 209,00( 36,00( 3,119,00!
Net Acres (where applicabl 378,00( — — — 378,00(

Our net interest in production from royalty, ovdimig royalty and leasehold interests is based aseleoyalty and other third-party
contractual terms, which vary from property to pdp. Consequently, net acreage ownership in tbasgories is not determinable. Our net
interest in production from properties in which oxen a royalty or overriding royalty interest maydféected by royalty terms negotiated by
the mineral interest owners in such tracts and thssees. Our interest in the majority of thesgperties is perpetual in nature. However, a
minor portion of the properties are subject to '&and conditions pursuant to which a portion ofiaterest may terminate upon cessation of



production.
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The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ111, the combined summary of total gross and erelsawhere applicable, of mineral,
royalty, overriding royalty and leasehold interésteach of the states in which these interestéoarged.

State Gross® Net @ State Gross Net @

Alabama 105,00( 8,00( Missouri 1,00( < 50(
Arkansas 47,00( 16,00( Montana 282,00( 63,00(
California 1,00( < 50( Nebraske 3,00( < 50(
Colorado 23,00( 1,00( New Mexico 42,00( 3,00(
Florida 89,00( 25,00( New York 23,00( 19,00(
Georgia 4,00( 1,00C North Dakote 293.00! 46,00(
Illinois 5,00(C 1,00( Oklahoma 230,00( 17,00(
Indiana < 50( < 50( Pennsylvania 10,00( 6,00(
Kansas 14,00( 2,00(¢ South Dakota 14,00( 1,00(
Kentucky 2,00( 1,00( Texas 1,641,00i 152,00(
Louisiana 131,00( 3,00( Utah 6,00( < 50(C
Michigan 54,00( 3,00( Wyoming 27,00( 1,00(

Mississippi 72,00( 9,00(
(1) <500 means acreage owned did not round up to 1,000

Leasing Activity

The operating partnership and we received cash gatgin the amount of $571,000 during 2011 atteblé to lease bonus on 28 leases
and 14 pooling elections in lands located in 2énti@s and parishes in seven states. These ledkeded bonus payments ranging up to
$2,500/acre and initial royalty terms ranging uj2@8%6.

The operating partnership and we received cash gatgin the amount of $167,000 during the fourthrtgr of 2011 attributable to lease
bonus on eight leases and three pooling electiboaranterests in lands located in nine countied parishes in five states. These leases

reflected bonus payments ranging up to $1,100/@udenitial royalty terms ranging up to 25%.

The following table sets forth a summary of leaamed pooling elections consummated during 2009 tiin2011.

Consummated Leases 2011 2010 2009
Number 42 10z 53
Number of State 7 8 4
Number of Countie 26 32 22
Average Royalty 26% 24.&% 23.2%
Average Bonus, $/acre $ 472 $ 1,708 $ 56&
Total Lease Bonus — cash basis $ 571,000 $ 3,862,000 $ 663,00(

Amounts reflected above may differ from our cordated financial statements, which are presenteghaaccrual basis. Some activity may
be in Net Profits Interests income. Average rgyahid average bonus exclude amounts attributalgedbting elections. Payments received for
gas storage, shirt-and delay rental payments, coal royalty, surizge agreements, litigation judgments and settlepraceeds are reflected
our consolidated financial statements in variousg@aries including, but not limited to, other ogérg revenues and other income.

Net Profits | nterests

We own net profits overriding royalty interestsféreed to as the Net Profits Interests, or “NPIg"yarious properties owned by the
operating partnership. We receive monthly paymeqtsaling 96.97% of the net profits actually realiby the operating partnership from
these properties in the preceding month. In thetesests exceed revenues on a cash basis in amiosth for properties subject to a Net
Profits Interest, no payment is made and any da$iciccumulated and carried over and reflectatiérfollowing month's calculation of net
profit.
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We own six NPIs. The Minerals NPI (one of the giw)ns certain cost bearing interests that were eithexistence at the time of our
formation, or created subsequent to our formatistrelssociated with nonproducing mineral, royaltgt Brasehold interest properties acquired
upon our formation. The Minerals NPI recently agkig a cumulative net profit status as a resultsofumulative net revenue exceeding
cumulative operating and actual and budgeted dapiteenditures and development costs. Through hdves 30, 2011, cumulative net profit
was approximately $1,347,000, resulting in NPI pagta of approximately $1,306,000 to us during theth quarter of 2011. Our fourth
guarter limited partner distribution included tpesyment. Our consolidated financial statementgcefictivity attributable to the Minerals NPI
and include a portion of 2011 cash receipts anoudsEments and accrued revenues and costs netcgdted or paid. Prior to the Minerals
NPI achieving a cumulative payout status, actigityibutable to the Minerals NPI was not refleciredur consolidated financial statement:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplee Effective third quarter 2011, consolidatedhfcial statements reflect activity
attributable to the Minerals NPI, and will continizedo so regardless of its net profit status cnraulative or reporting period basis. As of
December 31, 2011 each of the six NPIs has cumalativenue that exceeds cumulative costs, suclsexoastituting net proceeds on which
NPI payments are determined. In the event an N®htgeficit of cumulative revenue versus cumulatiests, the deficit will be borne sole
by the operating partnership.

The following tables set forth cash receipts arsthdisements, production volumes and reservesiatibile to the Minerals NPI from
inception through 2006 and the calendar years 2@@ngh 2011. The information designated as “Inetlith Financial Statements” and “ltem
7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Findr€tandition and Results of Operations” include cpaments made to us in January
2012 and their related production volumes.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Results
Year Ended December 31,
(in Thousands)

Inception
Through
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

Cash received for revenue $ 4,94 % 3,258 $ 6,01¢ $ 3,40¢ $ 7901 $ 11,78: $ 37,30¢
Cash paid for operating costs 852 521 852 86¢ 1,732 2,05t 6,87¢
Cash paid for development co: 4,311 2,63 477¢ 4,34¢ 3,24¢ 5,072 24,39:
Budgeted capital expenditures 90& 89C 2,63( (78) 4,347
Net cash (paid) receive $ (218) $ 99 $ (520) $ (2,695 $ 29C $ 473 $ 1,69(
Cumulative NPI (Deficit) Profit $ (218) $ (11¢) $ (63%) $ (3,33) $ (3,042 $ 1,69(
Included in net profits interests revenue on finalnstatements $ 163¢ $ 1,63¢

The revenue amounts, the production volumes, amgribved reserves presented include only propegtiducing revenue. The
development cost amounts pertain to more propetigasthe properties producing revenue due to tirdifferences between operating
partnership expenditures and oil and natural gaduymtion and payments to the operating partnership.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Production
Year ended December 31,

Inception
through
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011M Total
Natural Gas mc 455,72° 291,27¢ 418,741 596,34: 957,17¢ 1,305,89! 4,025,161
Oil & Condensate bbl 31,99¢ 19,66: 22,48( 21,10« 53,36¢ 73,79. 222,40:
Indicated Gas Price, $/mcf $ 6.5¢ $ 85t § 3.7¢ % 41 $ 35¢ $ 4.8¢
Indicated Oil/Cond. Price, $/bkt $ 62.9: $ 100.9¢ $ 48.8C $ 715 % 88.4: % 74.8:¢

(1) Cash sales volumes above include 512,367 mcf ofalagas and 21,636 bbls of oil & condensate aistuded in our Results of Operations.

The indicated prices set forth above are calculbtedividing each year’s gross revenues for eaoldywt by the production volume of the
corresponding product. Cash received for revenciedes minor amounts of non-product revenue. Satdulation does not necessarily reflect
contractual terms for sales and may be affectetiamgportation costs, location differentials, gtyaéind gravity adjustments and timing
differences between production and cash receiptBiding release of suspended funds, initial paytsfar accumulated sales, or prior period
adjustments.
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Minerals NP| Reserves
All Proved Developed and located in the United &t
Year ended December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Proved Reserves

Natural Gas (mmci®) 27% 31z 53z 1,442 1,99: 3,01¢ 4,26( 6,072
Oil & Condensate (mbblg} 7 32 46 34 65 65 17¢ 23(
Future Net Revenues ($ in thousanés) $ 1352 $ 3,39¢ $ 4,30¢ $10,52: $ 9,347 $ 8,95( $30,35: $43,08¢

Standardized Measure ($ in thousariéls) $ 1,03 $ 2,655 $ 3408 $ 7,257 $ 6,53 $ 6,451 $14,028 $29,21(

(3) Based on 12-month unweighted arithmetic averadbefirst day-of-the-month price of oil and natugalk in 2009 forward, otherwise based on year-eicthg of
oil and natural gas

Amounts in the above tables reflect the operatengnership’s ownership of the subject propertiest Rrofits Interest payments to us, if
any, equal 96.97% of the cumulative net profitsialty received by the operating partnership attdble to the subject properties. The above
production sales volumes, indicated prices, oil aatiral gas reserves, and financial informatidribaitable to the Minerals NPI may not be
indicative of future results of the Minerals NPI.

Acreage Summary

The following tables set forth, as of DecemberZ111, information concerning properties owned l®ydperating partnership and subject
to the NPIs, including the Minerals NPI propertidsreage amounts listed under “Leasehold” refleosg acres leased by the operating
partnership and the working interest share (netsén those properties. Acreage amounts liste@nfMineral” reflect gross acres in which
the operating partnership owns a mineral interedtthe undivided mineral interest (net acres) oséhproperties. The operating partnership's
interest in these properties may be unleased,ddasethers or a combination thereof. Acreage artsonmay not add across due to overlapping
ownership among categories. In addition to amolistesd below, the operating partnership owns egty limited to certain wellbores located
on lands in which we own mineral, royalty or leasldlinterests. The acreage amounts associatedhetivellbore interests are included in
Royalty Properties Acreage Summary and not indb&tbelow.

Mineral Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 12 2 7 13
Number of Counties/Parish 60 2 13 65
Gross Acres 49,00( 1,00( 98,00( 148,00(
Net Acres 6,00( — 82,00( 88,00(

The following table reflects the states in which #treage amounts listed above are located.

Mineral/Royalty Leasehold Total
Gross Net (@) Gross Net @) Gross Net
Oklahoma 12,00(¢ 1,00( 80,00( 74,00( 92,00( 75,00(
Kansas 1,00( <500 7,00( 7,00( 7,00( 7,00(
Arkansas 1,00( <500 8,00( 1,00( 9,00( 1,00(
All Others 37,00( 5,00( 3,00( <500 40,00( 5,00(
Totals 50,00( 6,00( 98,00( 82,00( 148,00( 88,00(

(1) <500 means acreage owned did not round up to 1,000

The operating partnership owns working interestevaghe currently producing horizons in 47,360 g/d$,960 net acres in Texas
County, Oklahoma. The operating partnership has fime to time farmed out its leasehold interestsdrtions of these lands, reserving an
overriding royalty interest therein, and will cotsi additional exploration or development of thiesels as circumstances warrant. The
leasehold acreage in Arkansas listed above inclalie$ the acreage in the Fayetteville Shale pridgp®in which the operating partnership
participates as a working interest owner.
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Costs Incurred

The following table sets forth information regamglit00% of the costs incurred on a cash basis bgpkeating partnership during the
periods indicated in connection with the propertiaderlying the NPIs.

Years ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Acquisition costs $ — 3 — 3 =
Development costd) 5,65¢ 3,26¢ 4,377
Total $ 5,65¢ $ 3,26¢ $ 4,37

(1) The years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 26lLb&$4,348,000, $3,249,000 and $4,362,000, réispsg attributable to NPIs before reaching paatss.

Productive Well Summary
The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ11 1, the combined number of producing wells onpitoperties subject to the NPIs,
including the Minerals NPI. Gross wells refer toll&wén which a working interest is owned. Net welle determined by multiplying gross

wells by the working interest in those wells.

Productive Wells/Units (1)

Location Gross Net
Oklahoma 19¢ 120.2
Kansas 20 20.C
All others 34E 16.:
Total 564 156.t

(1) Multiple well units operated by someone other tti@noperating partnership and in which we own NRésincluded as one gross well.
Drilling Activity

During 2011, we received division orders or firayments for 356 new wells completed on our RoyRlyperties in 9 states, and 66 new
wells completed on our NPI Properties in 4 statesluded in these totals are 14 wells in one statehich we own both a royalty interest and
a net profits interest. Wells with such overlagpinterests are counted in both categories.

Additional information concerning selected recesthaty is summarized below:

Fayetteville Shale Trend of Northern Arkansad/e own varying undivided perpetual mineral ing¢seaotaling 23,336/11,464 gross/net
acres located in Cleburne, Conway, Faulkner, Frapkbhnson, Pope, Van Buren, and White countielsadsas in an area commonly referred
to as the “Fayetteville Shale” trend of the ArkoBesin. Three hundred fifty-nine wells were perndtt the lands as of December 31, 2011,
218 of which the operating partnership owns arr@ste In total, 343 wells were spud, 315 were cetgal as producers, 21 were in various
stages of drilling or completion operations or wajton a pipeline, and seven wells were abandohedses covering approximately
10,722/5,310 gross/net acres expired on June 22, 20/e are currently determining the best coufsstion with regards to leasing or
participating with the unleased acreage. Approxahya8,933/4,448 gross/net acres are held by prtiahuc

Set forth below is a summary of Fayetteville Sradtvity through December 31, 2011 for wells in ethive have a royalty or Net Profits
Interest. This includes wells subject to the MitendP1 and wells for which we may not yet have reeeé division orders or first payment.

2004
through Total to
2008 2009 2010 Q12011 Q22011 Q32011 Q42011 Date
New Well Permits(%) 112 68 11C 23 17 17 11 35¢
Wells Spud 103 70 88 21 28 26 7 34:
Wells Completed? 81 49 88 29 18 17 33 Silis

Royalty Wells in Pay Statu® 36 55 70 22 17 16 9 22t

(1) Excludes permits that expire undrilled



(2) Completion date is defined as the day the well cemees production.
(3) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas imitially received during the indicated period

Our estimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2@clude reserves attributable to our royaltgriest in 267 wells totaling 5.82 bcf.

Proved reserves attributable to working interestsesl by the operating partnership totaled 5.46rb&f78 wells. These estimates only include
wells for which test rates have been obtained.
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Net cash receipts for the Royalty Properties atteble to interests in these lands totaled $3,8®8Bi® 2011 from 228 wells. Net cash
receipts for the Minerals NPI properties attriblgatio interests in these lands totaled $3,638,60D11 from 146 wells. Fourth quarter net
cash receipts for the Royalty Properties and theekéils NPI properties totaled $994,000 from 228snaahd $1,389,000 from 144 wells,
respectively.

Horizontal Bakken, Williston BasinWe own varying undivided perpetual mineral ingtseotaling 70,390/8,905 gross/net acres located
in Burke, Divide, Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail and \idims Counties, North Dakota. Operators activéhia area include Brigham QOil & Gas,
Continental Resources, EOG Resources, Hess Coigrgrabd Whiting Oil & Gas. One hundred eighty fowells were permitted on these
lands as of December 31, 2011, with 136 completgat@ducers. In most cases we elected to becoror-aansenting mineral owner—who is
not obligated to pay well costs. According to Nditakota law, non-consenting mineral owners recteeaverage royalty rate from the date
of first production and back-in for their full warlg interest after the operator has recovered 18D@filling and completion costs. Once 150%
payout occurs, the operating partnership will tbem the working interest; subject to the MineraRIXurden. Non-consenting mineral
owners are not entitled to well data other thanipubformation available from the North Dakota Lredrial Commission. As of December 31,
2011, 11 of these wells had achieved 150% payout.

Set forth below is a summary of Horizontal Bakketivdty through December 31, 2011 for wells in wiiwe own a royalty or Net Profits
Interest. This includes wells subject to the MiteidPI.

2004
through Total to
2008 2009 2010 Q12011 Q22011 Q32011 Q42011 Date
New Well Permits 61 23 57 11 16 13 3 184
Wells Spud 39 30 43 18 14 19 15 17¢
Wells Completed 31 31 37 8 10 13 6 13¢€
Wells reaching 150% Payofth 3 1 4 0 1 1 1 11

(1) Wells reaching 150% Payout means wells for Whie 150% penalty has been recovered during theated period .

Appalachian Basir We own varying undivided perpetual mineral ingésen approximately 31,000/24,000 gross/net a@aré9 counties
in southern New York and northern Pennsylvania.rApipnately 75% of those net acres are located steea Allegany and western Steuben
Counties, New York—an area that some industry prejssrts suggest may be prospective for gas pramtufrom unconventional reservoirs,
including the Marcellus Shale. The New York StagpBrtment of Environmental Conservation has coraglés regulatory review of high-
volume hydraulic fracturing practices; however, @lepment of these natural gas resources will badaruntil remaining regulatory issues are
resolved. We continue to monitor industry activdtyd encourage dialogue with industry participantdetermine the proper course of action
regarding our interests in this area.

Barnett Shale- We own varying undivided mineral and overridingalty interests in approximately 1,820 acres ledah Tarrant
County, Texas in an area commonly referred to aCibre Area of the Barnett Shale Trend. As of Déma31, 2011, 43 wells were drilled, of
which 42 wells were completed for production aneé wras drilled but not yet completed or connected pipeline. No new permits to drill
additional wells on the properties have been istyyecbgulatory agencies. Nine wells were broughpaduction during 2011, with an average
reported test rate of 3.4 mmcfd. We own interemtging from 17.1% to 20.0% NRI in these wells.

Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following table reflects the Partnership's gabdeveloped and total proved reserves at DeceBih@011. The reserves are based on
the reports of two independent petroleum engingegonsulting firms: Calhoun, Blair & Associates draRoche Petroleum Consultants,
Ltd. As described above, the Partnership doefaat information that would be available to a comypaith oil and natural gas operations
because detailed information is not generally add to owners of royalty interests. The PartripistVice President of Operations (“VP")
gathers production information and provides suébrination to our two independent engineering caivsgifirms who extrapolate from such
information estimates of the reserves attributédblne Royalty Properties and NPIs based on thxpiertise in the oil and natural gas fields
where the Royalty Properties and NPIs are situagdyell as publicly available information. Ensgricompliance with generally accepted
petroleum engineering and evaluation methods aocepures is the responsibility of the VP. Our VB &&achelor’'s degree in Petroleum
Engineering from the University of Alberta, and masrked in the upstream oil and natural gas busiimesarious capacities since 1996. The
VP reports directly to the Chief Executive Offi¢e€EQ”). Our CEO ensures compliance with SEC guaanOur CEO received his Bachelor
of Science degree in Petroleum Engineering fromagex&M University in 1984, and has been a Regist&mfessional Engineer in Texas
since 1988. Calhoun Blair & Associates is registerih the Engineering Board of the State of Texawl has been engaged in the business of
oil and natural gas property evaluation since 12@&oche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. is registaritid the Engineering Board of the State of
Texas. The LaRoche firm has been engaged in thiadassof oil and natural gas property evaluatioessiits formation in 1979. Other than our



filings with the SEC, we have not filed the estisthproved reserves with, or included them in apprs to, any federal agency. Copie:
the reports prepared by Calhoun, Blair & Associates LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. are athblereto as Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2.
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Summary of Oil and Gas Reserves as of Fiscal Yeam#
All Proved Developed and located in the United &tat
Net Profits Interests

Royalty Properties () Total

0]] Natural Ga: 0]] Natural Ga Oil Natural Ga
Year (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbils) (mmcf) (mbbils) (mmcf)
2011 3,31( 38,94( 25€ 28,02: 3,56¢ 66,96
2010 3,29( 36,93: 43 24,74¢ 3,33: 61,67¢

2009 3,23 34,92! 40 25,351 3,271 60,28(

(1) Reserves reflect 96.97% of the corresponding anscasgigned to the operating partnership’s intefegtee properties underlying the Net Profits |etes.

Proved oil and natural gas reserves means thosgitigs of oil and natural gas, which, by analysfigeoscience and engineering data,
can be estimated with reasonable certainty to baauically producible—from a given date forwardyfr known reservoirs, and under
existing economic conditions, operating methodd, gsvernmental regulations—prior to the time atehihgontracts providing the right to
operate expire, unless evidence indicates thatvarie reasonably certain, regardless of wheth&rdenistic or probabilistic methods are
used for the estimation. The project to extraethiipdrocarbons must have commenced or the operatstrbe reasonably certain that it
will commence the project within a reasonable tiRlease see “ltem 7 — Management'’s Discussion avadyis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Results of Operatiforsdverage sales prices.

The Hugoton Field reflected in the Net Profits tet#s above is the only significant field, defireedmore than 15% of total proved
developed reserves. Hugoton Field production gates) for the last three years is listed below:

Production by Significant Field

Oil bbls Gas mcf boe
2011 = 3,444,00C 574,000
2010 — 3,656,00C 609,000
2009 — 3,945,00C 658,000

Title to Properties

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of agsets. Record title to essentially all of ouetsbkhas undergone the appropriate filings in
the jurisdictions in which such assets are locaf@te to property may be subject to encumbran@és believe that none of such encumbrances
should materially detract from the value of ourg@dies or from our interest in these propertiestmuld materially interfere with their use in
the operation of our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatdled Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oitaa regarding the use of natural gas from the virllesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly ovinyeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contribugignificant portion of the NPI
amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007, plaintiffe;r fmmaterial costs, dismissed with prejudice Elros against the operating partnership
regarding such residential gas use. On Octobed@4,2he plaintiffs filed severed claims againg tiperating partnership regarding royalty
underpayments, which the Texas County District €subsequently dismissed with a grant of time ple&d. On January 27, 2006, one of the
original plaintiffs again sued the operating parshp for underpayment of royalty, seeking clagaccertification. On October 1, 2007, the
Texas County District Court granted the operatiagnership’s motion for summary judgment findingrogalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pl#istmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. On March 31, 2010, the
appeal decision reversed and remanded to the Teow@sty District Court to resolve material issuedamt. On June 30, 2011, the District
Court issued a revised partial summary judgmefavor of the operating partnership. A claim of arfgayment of royalty remains pending.
An adverse decision could reduce amounts we reémivethe NPIs.

The Partnership and the operating partnershipnarghied in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesigmificant effect on financial
position or operating results.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common units began trading on the NASDAQ Natidviarket (now the NASDAQ Global Select Market) leebruary 3, 2003. The
following table summarizes the high and low safésrimation for the common units for the period oated.

2011 2010
High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 2025 $ 2590 $ 2386 $ 20.50
Second Quarter $ 3009 $ 2518 $ 2815 $ 21.04
Third Quarter $ 2829 $ 2081 $ 2730 $ 23.66
Fourth Quarter $ 2576 $ 2176 $ 2942 $ 25.00

As of December 31, 2011, there were 16,436 comnnithalders.

Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003geqgsired by our partnership agreement, we disietband will continue to distribute,
on a quarterly basis, within 45 days of the enthefquarter, all of our available cash. Availakdstt means all cash and cash equivalents on
hand at the end of that quarter, less any amoucasif reserves that our general partner deterrisimecessary or appropriate to provide for
conduct of its business or to comply with appliealalws or agreements or obligations to which we bwgubject.

Unitholder cash distributions per common unit fog past four years have been:

Per Unit Amount

2011 2010 2009 2008
First Quarter $0.426745 $0.449222 $0.401205 $0.57230C
Second Quarter $0.417027 $0.412207 $0.271354 $0.76920¢
Third Quarter $0.45554€ $0.471081 $0.28696¢ $0.948472
Fourth Quarter $0.44855% $0.354074 $0.32154C $0.542081

Distributions beginning with the first quarter ddZ0 were paid on 30,675,431 units; distributiomsfithe second quarter of 2009
through the fourth quarter of 2009 were paid 01820,431 units; previous distributions above werid pa 28,240,431 units. Fourth quarter
distributions are paid in February of the followioglendar year to unitholders of record in Janaardyebruary of such following year. The
partnership agreement requires the next cashhlisivn to be paid by May 15, 2012.

Please see "Fourth Quarter 2011 Distribution Irtdi¢drice" discussion contained in “Item 7. -- Mg@@ent's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations guidity and Capital Resources -- Distributions” fwoduction periods and cash receipts and
weighted average prices corresponding to the fagutirter 2011 distribution.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofawmmon units with the performance of the NASDAQ@asite Index (the
“NASDAQ Index”) and a peer group index from Decem®#, 2006 through December 31, 2011. The graplmass that at the beginning
of the period, $100 was invested in each of (1)ammmon units, (2) the NASDAQ Index, and (3) thempgroup, and that all distributions
or dividends were reinvested. We do not believédhg published industry or line-of-business indegurately reflects our business.
Accordingly, we have created a special peer gradpx consisting of companies whose royalty trusisiare publicly traded on the New
York Stock Exchange. Our peer group index inclutiesunits of the following companies: Cross TimbRoyalty Trust, Mesa Royalty
Trust, Sabine Royalty Trust, Permian Basin Roy@#tyst, Hugoton Royalty Trust and the San Juan Basiyalty Trust.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
Basis of Presentation
This table should be read in conjunction with tbaesolidated financial statements and related rintdgded elsewhere in this document.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Total operating revenues $ 69,48¢ $ 61,09 $ 43,63 $ 89,92 $ 65,36
Depreciation, depletion and
amortization 18,34¢ 17,98¢ 15,59¢ 14,73¢ 15,567
Net income 42,21¢ 34,88: 21,68! 66,78 43,04¢
Net income per unit (basic al
diluted) 1.3t 1.11 0.7z 2.3C 1.4¢
Cash distributioné&) 52,50¢ 52,19¢ 44, 72¢ 81,64¢ 57,401
Cash distributions per urfi 1.65 1.65 1.5C 2.8( 1.97
Total assets 142,76¢ 153,11 152,76¢ 139,56: 154,25:
Total liabilities 65€ 71C 737 98C 804
Partners' capital 142,11: 152,40: 152,03: 138,58 153,44

(1) Because of depletion (which is usually higher ia &arly years of production), a portion of everstrbution of revenues from properties represemetian



of a limited partner's original investment. Untilimited partner receives cash distributions edadlis original investment, in certain circumstas)cE00% of
such distributions may be deemed to be a retunapital. Cash distributions by year exclude thetto quarter distribution declared in January @ th
following year, but include the prior year fourtharter distribution declared in January of the entiyear.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2011 Overview

Our results during 2011 were strong despite dedimatural gas prices and reduced drilling activitynany of our producing
areas. Significant results include the following:

Net income of $42.2 millior

Distributions of $50.7 million to our limited paers;

Identification of 408 new wells located on ounyfRtly and Net Profits Interest Properties in 9edat

Consummation of 42 leases of our mineral intdreahdeveloped properties located in 26 countiesarishes in seven states, and
Minerals NPI reaches payout resulting in an iaseein oil reserves of 223 mbbls and gas resef2888 mmcf.

Critical Accounting Policies

We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and natural gas propertiesler this method, all such costs are
capitalized and amortized on an aggregate basistbgestimated lives of the properties using thiéseof-production method. These
capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling tesyewer, which limits such pooled costs to the aggregf the present value of future net
revenues attributable to proved oil and naturalrgasrves discounted at 10% plus the lower of @ostarket value of unproved properties.
Our Partnership did not assign any book or marktesto unproved properties, including nonproducmglty, mineral and leasehold
interests. The full cost ceiling is evaluated &t ¢éimd of each quarter and when events indicatéhp@smipairment. No impairments have been
recorded since 2003.

The discounted present value of our proved oilatdral gas reserves is a major component of tfiegealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves ascémts based on engineering and geological anayg&gent reserve engineers could reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiesatfiral gas or crude oil reserves based on the g#formation. Our reserve estimates are
prepared by independent consultants. The passagaeprovides more qualitative information regaglreserve estimates, and revisions are
made to prior estimates based on updated informatlowever, there can be no assurance that mandisamnt revisions will not be necessary
in the future. Significant downward revisions covdgult in an impairment representing a non-casingghto income. In addition to the impact
on calculation of the ceiling test, estimates afved reserves are also a major component of ticelesibn of depletion.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil @attiral gas reserves that are included
in the discounted present value of our reserveslgjeztively determined. The ceiling test calcaatiequires use of the unweighted arithmetic
average of the first day of the month price dutimg 12-month period ending on the balance sheetatat costs in effect as of the last day of
the accounting period, which are generally heldstamt for the life of the properties. As a resthig present value is not necessarily an
indication of the fair value of the reserves. @ilanatural gas prices have historically been Velasind the prevailing prices at any given time
may not reflect our Partnership’s or the industfgi®cast of future prices.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assus it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabifities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finarstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxg@enses during the reporting period. For
example, estimates of uncollected revenues anddiegpenses from Royalty Properties and NPIs opdray non-affiliated entities are
particularly subjective due to the inability to gaiccurate and timely information. Therefore, alctasults could differ from those estimates.
Please see “Item 1. Business—Customers and Prieimg)“Item 2. Properties—Royalty Properties” fodgidnal discussion.

Contractual Obligations
Our office lease in Dallas, Texas comprises outremtual obligations.

Payments due by Period

More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

Operating Lease Obligations $ 815,000 $ 240,000 $ 510,000 $ 65,000 =
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Results of Operations
Normally, our period-to-period changes in net inecamd cash flows from operating activities are @pally determined by changes in
oil and natural gas sales volumes and prices,@addsser extent, by capital expenditures deduatdér the NPI calculation. Our portion of

oil and natural gas sales volumes and weightedageesales prices are shown in the following table.

Years Ended December 31,

Accrual Basis Sales Volumes: 2011 2010 2009
Royalty Properties Gas Sales (mmcf) 6,212 4,981 4,45
Royalty Properties Oil Sales (mbbls) 327 322 294
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales (mmcf) 3,83¢ 3,351 3,59
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales (mbbls) 40 10 11

Accrual Basis Weighted Averages Sales Price:

Royalty Properties Gas Sales ($/mcf) $ 3.77 $ 4.21 $ 3.71
Royalty Properties Qil Sales ($/bbl) $ 91.5¢ $ 74.7i $ 57.3¢
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales ($/mcf) $ 4.81 $ 5.07 $ 3.91
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales ($/bbl) $ 88.2% $ 69.4( $ 51.8¢

Accrual Basis Production Costs Deducted underNle¢ Profits Interests ($/mcfé€) $ 1.81 $ 1.7¢ $ 1.5C

(1) Provided to assist in determination of revenuepliap only to Net Profits Interests sales volumesgs.

Comparison of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Royalty Properties’ oil sales volumes increase@®ffom 294 mbbls during 2009 to 322 mbbls durin@@and then increased 1.6% to
327 mbbls during 2011. The increases were partihle to the acquisition of Maecenas Minerals LioRMarch 31, 2010 as well as activity in
the Bakken Shale Trend of North Dakota. RoyaltypRrties’ gas sales volumes increased 11.9% frd&i7danmcf during 2009 to 4,987 mmcf
during 2010, and then increased 24.6% to 6,212 nanéfig 2011. The increases in natural gas volum@810 and 2011 were primarily due
to the acquisition of Maecenas Minerals LLP effeztMarch 31, 2010, the acquisition of Barnett 8habperties effective June 30, 2009, and
their subsequent development.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2011 oil and gates volumes attributable to our NPIs includedinrads attributable to the Minerals
NPI. The Minerals NPI had cumulative revenuesxicess of cumulative operating and development ehsgiag the period ending Septem|
30, 2011. Sales volumes and prices attributableedviinerals NPI during periods prior to the thipgarter of 2011 are excluded from the
above table because DMLP did not receive any patgrfesm such NPI sales volumes during those présiopls. See “ltem 2 Properties — Net
Profts Interest.”

NPI properties’ oil sales volumes decreased 9.1 ft 1 mbbls during 2009 to 10 mbbls during 201@, aubsequently increased 300%
to 40 mbbls during 2011, due to including the MaieMNPI. NPI properties’ gas sales volumes dect@s&b from 3,593 mmcf during 2009
to 3,351 mmcf during 2010; and, subsequently irsgdd 4.5% to 3,838 mmcf in 2011, principally duetduding the Minerals NPI. Minerals
NPI oil sales volumes and gas sales volumes indlirdéhe Net Profits Interest volumes were 31 miglold 713 mmcf. Se‘ltem 2 Properties
— Net Profts Interest.”

Weighted average oil sales prices attributablééoRoyalty Properties increased 30.4% from $57e3%pl in 2009 to $74.77 per bbl in
2010 and subsequently increased 22.4% to $91.56hbém 2011. Royalty Properties’ weighted averggs sales prices increased 13.5% from
$3.71 per mcf during 2009 to $4.21 per mcf duriod@and then decreased 10.5% to $3.77 per mcfgl@fil. All such fluctuations resulted
from changing market conditions.

Weighted average NPI properties’ gas sales priveeased 29.7% from $3.91 per mcf during 2009 t6®per mcf during 2010 and then
decreased 5.1% to $4.81 per mcf in 2011. NPI ptmgsemweighted average oil sales prices increase8l?8 from $51.83 per bbl during 2009 to
$69.40 per bbl during 2010 and subsequently inex23.2% to $88.27 per bbl in 2011. All such flations resulted from changing market
conditions. Additionally, 2010 natural gas pricaslide a natural gas liquids payment accrual of Béncf related to 2010 production
compared to $0.51/mcf in 2009. The accrued 201drabgas liquids payment of $0.93/mcf is includedhie $4.81/mcf average gas sales price
for 2011. The natural gas liquids payments aredasean Oklahoma Guymon-Hugoton field 1994 gasvdgliagreement that is in effect
through 2015. Under the terms of the agreementnwine market price of natural gas liquids increasggciently disproportionately to natural
gas market prices, the operating partnership resevportion of that increase in an annual paynherhe event the evaluation at the end of
the annual contract period shows the payment weberminable and collectable, the revenue is adcr@enerally, we receive payment in the
first quarter of the following year.



Our operating revenues increased 40.0% from $43)681during 2009 to $61,094,000 in 2010 and sub=atyincreased 13.7% to
$69,489,000 in 2011. Increased oil and naturavghsmes from property acquisitions effective MaBd 2010, the Minerals NPI reaching
payout in 2011, increased natural gas liquids paysand increased oil prices offset the lower 2@dtural gas prices.
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General and administrative (“G&A”) costs increaddd1% from $3,715,000 in 2009 to $4,128,000 in 2646 to increased costs related
to, among other things, regulatory reporting changereased number of unitholder accounts requiisls and professional fees related to
revenue audits. G&A decreased slightly in 20114®88,000.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization increaEe8% from $15,599,000 in 2009 to $17,988,000 ih@Primarily as a result of the
acquisition of new properties partially offset bjoaver depletion rate due to upward revisions Iraod natural gas reserve estimates. During
2011, depletion and amortization increased 2.0%1&348,000, primarily as a result of increasedipction partially offset by a lower
depletion rate due to upward revisions in oil aatlurael gas reserve estimates and inclusion of timeddls NPI reserves. Cash flow from
operations and cash distributions to unitholdeesnart affected by depletion, depreciation and aixedion.

Net cash provided by operating activities increadkd % from $37,396,000 during 2009 to $52,763@Mdng 2010 primarily due to
increased oil and natural gas prices. Net castiged by operating activities increased 5.2% t0,%496,000 during 2011 primarily due to
increased oil prices and increased oil and nagaslproduction, partially offset by reduced natges prices.

Climate Change

Climate change has become the subject of an imgguteblic policy debate. In response to climatenggaconcerns, many foreign
countries are adopting climate change legislatimhr@gulations. Although the United States Conghessconsidered adopting climate change
legislation, it has yet to enact such legislatiod/ar regulations at the federal level. Severdksthave adopted or are considering adopting
climate change legislation. Further, the EnvirontakRrotection Agency (“EPA”) issued greenhousergasitoring and reporting regulations
that went into effect January 1, 2010. Those reguia require that regulated facilities report bafgh 2011, and annually thereafter. The
EPA has issued final regulations requiring petroieand natural gas operators meeting a certain Emiweshold to report their greenhouse
gas emissions to the EPA. In addition to the m&agw@and reporting requirements, the EPA issuetBEaangerment Finding” under Section
202(a) of the Clean Air Act, concluding greenhogas pollution threatens the public health and weltd future generations and has indicated
that it will use data collected through the repagtiules to decide whether to promulgate futuregheuse gas emission limits. The current
state of development of many state and federalatérahange regulatory initiatives makes it difftdol predict with certainty the future impact
on us, including accurately estimating the relatechpliance costs that the operating partnershipoérahd natural gas operators that develop
our properties may incur.

See Item 1A. Risk Factors — “Environmental costs labilities and changing environmental regulattmuld affect our cash flow” and
“The adoption of climate change legislation by Casg could result in increased operating costgesaced demand for the oil and natural
gas production from our properties.”

Texas Margin Tax

Texas imposes a franchise tax (commonly referrexstihhe Texas margin tax) at a rate of 1% on geanues less certain deductions, as
specifically set forth in the Texas margin tax stat The Texas margin tax applies to corporationslinited liability companies, general and
limited partnerships (unless otherwise exempt)itéichliability partnerships, trusts (unless othesmvexempt), business trusts, business
associations, professional associations, jointkstoenpanies, holding companies, joint venturescerthin other business entities having
limited liability protection.

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirngsading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioine from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m&agias “passive entities.” We believe our Pasimg@ meets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingaxposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the Fewargin tax. If the Partnership is exempt
from Texas margin tax as a passive entity, eactmoldier that is considered a taxable entity underTtexas margin tax would generally be
required to include its portion of Partnership maves in its own Texas margin tax computation. Tegas Administrative Code provides such
income is sourced according to the principal plefdeusiness of the Partnership, which would besthée of Texas.

Each unitholder is urged to consult an indepentienadvisor regarding the requirements for filitats income, franchise and Texas
margin tax returns.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital are our cash flomnfithe Royalty Properties and the NPIs. We aralimettly liable for the payment of a
exploration, development or production costs. Wadbhave any transactions, arrangements or ogfetianships that could materially affect



our liquidity or the sustainability of capital rasces.
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Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreementannot incur indebtedness, other than tradelpes, (i) in excess of $50,000 in the
aggregate at any given time or (ii) which would stitnte "acquisition indebtedness" (as definedant®n 514 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended).

Our only cash requirements are the distributionalladur net cash flow to our unitholders, the paytof oil and natural gas production
and property taxes not otherwise deducted fromsgoosduction revenues and general and administratipenses incurred on our behalf and
allocated in accordance with our partnership agesgnsince the distributions to our unitholders asedefinition, determined after the
payment of all expenses actually paid by us, thg cash requirements that may create liquidity @ns for us are the payments of expenses.
Since many of these expenses vary directly wittaiod natural gas prices and sales volumes, sugfodaction taxes, we anticipate that
sufficient funds will be available at all times foayment of these expenses. Of the expenses thmaitd@ry with oil and natural gas prices and
sales volumes, most are reimbursements to our glgoentner for allocable general and administratiosts including home office rent, salar
and employee benefit plans. Such reimbursementgearerally limited to 5% of an amount primarily bdson annual distributions to our
limited partners. Historically, all such reimbursamts have been substantially below the 5% limaldighed by the partnership agreement.
Consequently, even during the 2008 economic downtur business risks were essentially limitedistrithution amount decreases. See “ltem
1. Business — Credit Facilities and Financing Plaigee “ltem 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relatedto Business — Cash distributions are
affected by production and other costs, some otlwhre outside of our control.” See “Item 1A. Riskctors — Risks Inherent In An
Investment In Our Common Units — Cost reimbursendeietour general partner may be substantial andceedur cash available to distribute
to our unitholders.” See "Notes to ConsolidatethRcial Statements — Note 3 — Related Party Tréinsac'

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangesrtbiat have or are reasonably likely to have aectior future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity iteyexpenditures or capital resources that
are material to unitholders.

Expenses and Capital Expenditures

The operating partnership plans to continue itsr&ffto increase production in Oklahoma by techeéginat may include fracture
treating, deepening, recompleting, and drillingsSovary widely and are not predictable as eadrtaféquires specific engineering. Such
activities by the operating partnership could iefiae the amount we receive from the NPIs as refieict the accrual basis production costs
$/mcfe in the table under “Results of Operations.”

The operating partnership owns and operates this,vpgbelines and natural gas compression and datigd facilities on its properties
located in Kansas and Oklahoma. The operating @esttip anticipates gradual increases in expense=pass to these facilities become
more frequent and anticipates gradual increasgslthoperating expenses as reservoir pressuréngsciThe operating partnership does not
anticipate incurring significant expense to repldeese facilities at this time. These capital apdrating costs are reflected in the NPI
payments we receive from the operating partnership.

In 1998, Oklahoma regulations removed productioangjty restrictions in the Guymon-Hugoton field atid not address efforts by
third parties to persuade Oklahoma to permit ifillling in the Guymon-Hugoton field. Infill drithg could require considerable capital
expenditures. The outcome and the cost of suchitiesi are unpredictable and could influence the@am we receive from the NPIs. The
operating partnership believes it now has sufficfexdd compression and permits for vacuum operetay the foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Working Capital

Year-end cash and cash equivalents totaled $19@38or 2011, $11,253,000 for 2010, and $10,124f60@009.

Distributions

Distributions to limited partners and the genegatiper related to cash receipts for the period féetober 2010 through December
2011 were as follows:

$ in Thousands

Per Unit Limited General
Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount Partners Partner
2010 4th  January 24, 2011 February 3, 2011 $ 0.354074 $ 10,861 $ 38¢

2011 1st  April 25, 2011 May 5, 2011 0.42674¢ 13,091 413



2011 2nd  July 25, 2011 August 4, 2011

2011 3rd  October 24, 2011 Novembei3, 2011
Total distributions paid in 2011
2011 4th  January 23, 2012 February 2, 2012

0.417027
0.455546

$ 0.44855¢

12,793 46¢
13,974 51€
$ 50,719 $ 1,78¢
$ 13,759 $ 474

In general, the limited partners are allocated @%e Royalty Properties’ net receipts and 99%wfNPI net receipts.
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Net Profits Interests

We receive monthly payments from the operatingneaiship equal to 96.97% of the net proceeds agtredllized by the operating
partnership from the properties underlying the Rieffits Interests (or “NPIs”). The operating parstep retains the 3.03% balance of these net
proceeds. Net proceeds generally reflect grossepraxattributable to oil and natural gas produaictually received during the month less
production costs actually paid during the same mdPtoduction costs generally reflect drilling, qaetion, operating and general and
administrative costs and exclude depletion, amatith and other non-cash costs. The operating gaittip made NPI payments to us totaling
$10,458,000 during October 2010 through Septem®gt 2vhich payments reflected 96.97% of total metpeds of $10,785,000 realized fi
September 2010 through August 2011. Net proceedized by the operating partnership during Septerttiteugh November 2011 were
reflected in NPl payments made during October thhoDecember 2011. These payments were includdteifourth quarter distribution paid
early 2012 and are excluded from this 2011 analysis

Royalty Properties

Revenues from the Royalty Properties are typiqadligl to us with proportionate severance (produgtiaxes deducted and remitted by
others. Additionally, we generally pay ad valoreaxes, general and administrative costs, and matkatid associated costs since royalties
lease bonuses generally do not otherwise bear e similar costs. After deduction of the abaescribed costs including cash reserves,
our net cash receipts from the Royalty Propertigsd the period October 2010 through Septembef 2@dre $42,047,000, of which
$40,365,000 (96%) was distributed to the limitedners and $1,682,000 (4%) was distributed to #reegal partner. Proceeds received by us
from the Royalty Properties during the period Oetaihrough December 2011 became part of the fauréter distribution paid in early 2012,
which is excluded from this 2011 analysis.

Distribution Determinations

The actual calculation of distributions is perfodneach calendar quarter in accordance with ouneeship agreement. The follow
calculation covering the period October 2010 thio8gptember 2011 demonstrates the method.

$ In Thousands

Limited General

Partners Partner
4% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Properties $ = $ 1,68
96% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Properties 40,36¢ —
1% of NPl Payments to our Partnership = 104
99% of NPI Payments to our Partnership 10,354 —
Total Distributions $ 50,71¢ ¢ 1,78¢
Operating Partnership Share (3.03% of Net Proceeds) — 327
Total General Partner Share $ 2,11
% of Total 96% 4%

In summary, our limited partners received 96%, amdgeneral partner received 4% of the net caskrgéed by our activities and
those of the operating partnership during thisquerDue to these fixed percentages, our genertigragoes not have any incentive
distribution rights or other right or arrangemedmdttwill increase its percentage share of net gasierated by our activities or those of the
operating partnership.

During the period October 2010 through Septembé&d. 26ur Partnership's quarterly distribution payta¢a limited partners were based
on all of its available cash. Our Partnership'y@inificant cash reserves that influenced quigrfgmyments were $1,245,000 for ad valorem
taxes. Additionally, certain production costs untder NP1 calculation and a small portion of managetexpense reimbursements include
amounts for which funds were set aside monthlyntabée payment when due. Examples are contributm®&EP-IRA accounts and payroll
taxes. These amounts generally are not held faogeeover one year.

Fourth Quarter 2011 Distribution Indicated Price

In an effort to provide information concerning @s$cof oil and natural gas sales that corresponditguarterly distributions, management
calculates the weighted average price by dividirasg revenues received by the net volumes of thegmonding product without regard to the
timing of the production to which such sales mayatigbutable. This “indicated price” does not nesaily reflect the contractual terms for
such sales and may be affected by transportatists docation differentials, and quality and gradtjustments. While the relationship
between the Partnership's cash receipts and tlegtiof the production of oil and natural gas maydescribed generally, actual cash receipts



may be materially impacted by purchasers’ reledseigpended funds and by prior period adjustments.
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Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership'saRp{Properties during the 2011 fourth quarterleatapproximately $12.3 million. These
receipts generally reflect oil sales during Septerntbrough November 2011 and natural gas saleaglédigust through October 2011. The
weighted average indicated prices for oil and redtgas sales during the 2011 fourth quarter atizie to the Royalty Properties were
$87.19/bbl and $3.69/mcf.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership'sBting the 2011 fourth quarter totaled approxatya$3.2 million and include Net Prof
Interest payments from the Minerals NP of appraatiety $1.3 million. These receipts generally reflgitand natural gas sales from the
properties underlying the NPIs during August thto@gtober 2011. The weighted average indicateegpfior oil and natural gas sales during
the 2011 fourth quarter attributable to the NPIsen®86.77/bbl and $3.78/mcf.

General and Administrative Costs

In accordance with our partnership agreement, vae &é&general and administrative and other ovetteegpenses subject to certain
limitations. We reimburse our general partner fentain allocable costs, including rent, wages,rgsdaand employee benefit plans. This
reimbursement is limited to an amount equal tostiva of 5% of our distributions plus certain cosevipusly paid. Through December 31,
2011, the limitation was in excess of the reimbomsiet amounts actually paid or accrued.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The following information provides quantitative agdalitative information about our potential expa@suto market risk. The term
"market risk" refers to the risk of loss arisingrfr adverse changes in oil and natural gas priotergist rates and currency exchange rates.
The disclosures are not meant to be precise irateatf expected future losses, but rather indisabbpossible losses.

Market Risk Related to Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Essentially all of our assets and sources of incaradrom the Royalty Properties and the NPIs, tvigienerally entitle us to receive a
share of the proceeds from oil and natural gasymtaoh on those properties. Consequently, we dsgestito market risk from fluctuations
in oil and natural gas prices. Pricing for oil aratural gas production has been volatile and urnqedale for several years. We do not
anticipate entering into financial hedging actedtintended to reduce our exposure to oil and akgas price fluctuations.

Absence of Interest Rate and Currency Exchange Riake

We do not anticipate having a credit facility ocumring any debt, other than trade debt. Therefegedo not expect interest rate risk to
be material to us. We do not anticipate engagirtgainsactions in foreign currencies which couldaseus to foreign currency related
market risk.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPP LEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements are set fegtkin commencing on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Clrécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, hasluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduledRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangeadatf December 31, 2011. Based on
this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andi€Hrinancial Officer have concluded that, as ot&maber 31, 2011, our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective, in that they enthakinformation required to be disclosed by uthimreports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summasgrddeported within the time periods specifiethie SEC’s rules and forms, and (2)
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fin@ai®©Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management acknowledges its responsibility fortdisthing and maintaining adequate internal cortrar financial reporting in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated underkchange Act. Management has also evaluatedféaieeness of its internal control
over financial reporting in accordance with gerlgratcepted accounting principles within the guitket of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission framewBdsed on the results of this evaluation, managehandetermined that the
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay was effective as of December 31, 2011. Thepethident registered public accounting firm
of Grant Thornton LLP, as auditors of the Partnig@stfinancial statements included in the AnnuapBe, has issued an attestation report on
the Partnership’s internal control over financiggporting.
Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our Partnership’s intexmatrol over financial reporting (as defined inl®w3ai5(f) of the Securities Exchan
Act of 1934) during the quarter ended Decembe281]1, that have materially affected, or are reaslyrikely to materially affect, our intern
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorpe@dherein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statemdrich will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2011.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statemdrith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2011.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpedherein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statemérith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2011.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpedherein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statemérith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2011.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpedherein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statemérith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tR&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2011.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules
(1) See the Index to Consolidated Financialetants on page F-1.
(2) No schedules are require

(3) A list of the exhibits required by Item 606fLRegulation S-K to be filed as part of this repe set forth in the Index to
Exhibits beginning on



page F-13, which immediately precedes such exhibits
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND NATURAL GAS TERMS

The definitions set forth below shall apply to thdicated terms as used in this document. All vasraf natural gas referred to herein
are stated at the legal pressure base of themstatea where the reserves exist and at 60 degegeenheit and in most instances are rounded
to the nearest major multiple.

"bbl" means a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons an@septs the basic unit for measuring the produdfamude oil, natural gas liquids
and condensate.

"bcf” means one billion cubic feet under prescribed da s of pressure and temperature and represemti for measuring the
production of natural gas.

“boe” means one barrel of oil equivalent, converting redtgas to oil at the ratio of 6 Mcf of natural gasl Bbl of oil.

"Depletion” means (a) the volume of hydrocarbons extracted &darmation over a given period of time, (b) theerof hydrocarbon
extraction over a given period of time expressed psrcentage of the reserves existing at the bemjrof such period, or (c) the amount of
cost basis at the beginning of a period attrib@tablthe volume of hydrocarbons extracted durirgheriod.

"Division order" means a document to protect lessees and purctegasduction, in which all parties who may havelam to the
proceeds of the sale of production agree upon hewptoceeds are to be divided.

"Enhanced recovery"means the process or combination of processesedpplia formation to extract hydrocarbons in addito those
that would be produced utilizing the natural eneggisting in that formation. Examples of enhanasabrery include water flooding and
carbon dioxide (CO2) injection.

"Estimated future net revenue@liso referred to as "estimated future net cash"jloneans the result of applying current pricegibfind
natural gas to estimated future production fronaail natural gas proved reserves, reduced by dstifisture expenditures, based on
current costs to be incurred in developing and pecod) the proved reserves, excluding overhead.

"Formation” means a distinct geologic interval, sometimes reteto as the strata, which has characteristiah(as
permeability, porosity and hydrocarbon saturatidhaj distinguish it from surrounding intervals.

"Gross acre"'means the number of surface acres in which a worikiterest is owned.

"Gross well" means a well in which a working interest is owned.
"Lease bonus"means the initial cash payment made to a lessarlbgsee in consideration for the execution andeyance of the lease.
"Leasehold” means an acre in which a working interest is owned.

"Lessee'means the owner of a lease of a mineral interestiiact of land.

"Lessor" means the owner of the mineral interest who gramésse of his interest in a tract of land to edtbarty, referred to as the
lessee.

"Mineral interest" means the interest in the minerals beneath thasidf a tract of land. A mineral interest may &eesed from the
ownership of the surface of the tract. Ownership ofineral interest generally involves four incitteof ownership: (1) the right to use the
surface; (2) the right to incur costs and retaufits, also called the right to develop; (3) thghtito transfer all or a portion of the mineral
interest; and (4) the right to retain lease besgifitcluding bonuses and delay rentals.

"mcf” means one thousand cubic feet under prescribedtmrsdof pressure and temperature and represeatsasic unit for
measuring the production of natural gas.

“mcfe” means one thousand cubic feet of natural gas dgquiy@onverting oil or condensate to natural gabearatio of 1 Bbl of oil or
condensate to 6 Mcf of natural gas. This conversitin, which is typically used in the oil and gadustry, represents the approximate energy
equivalent of a barrel of oil or condensate to af bf natural gas. The sales price of one barr@liladr condensate has been much higher than
the sales price of six Mcf of natural gas overl#st several years, so a six to one conversioa dates not represent the economic equivalency
of six Mcf of natural gas to one barrel of oil @ndensate



"mbbls"means one thousand standard barrels of 42 U.®ngadind represents the basic unit for measuringrissuction of crude oil,
natural gas liquids and condensate.

"mmcf’ means one million cubic feet under prescribed d@h of pressure and temperature and representsatic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.
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"Net acre"means the product determined by multiplying grasssby the interest in such acres.
"Net well"means the product determined by multiplying grdbarad natural gas wells by the interest in suckisve

"Net profits interesttmeans a non-operating interest that creates a shgress production from another (operating or-operating)
interest in oil and natural gas properties. Theesigmdetermined by net profits from the sale aidorction and customarily provides for the
deduction of capital and operating costs from ttee@eds of the sale of production. The owner aétgpnofits interest is customarily liable for
the payment of capital and operating costs onthéoextent that revenue is sufficient to pay suadicbut not otherwise.

"Operator” means the individual or company responsible foretkoration, development, and production of arooihatural gas well or
lease.

"Overriding royalty interestmeans a royalty interest created or reserved froothar (operating or non-operating) interest inaidl
natural gas properties. Its term extends for timeesterm as the interest from which it is created.

“Payout” or “Back-in" occurs when the working interest owners who pauditg in the costs of drilling and completing a wettoup the
costs and expenses, or a multiple of the costeapenses, of drilling and completing that well. ¥tilen are the owners who chose not to
contribute to these initial costs entitled to pap@te with the other owners in production and shiatthe expenses and revenues associated
with the well. The reversionary interest or backndterest of an owner similarly occurs when the empecomes entitled to a specified share
of the working or overriding royalty interest whepecified costs have been recovered from production

"Proved developed reserveasieans reserves that can be expected to be recqijetfe@dugh existing wells with existing equipmeantd
operating methods or in which the cost of the negliequipment is relatively minor compared to tbstof a new well; and (ii) Through
installed extraction equipment and infrastructyserational at the time of the reserves estimateeifextraction is by means not involving a
well.

"Proved reserves" or “Proved oil and natural gasesgves’means those quantities of oil and natural gas, hylig analysis of
geoscience and engineering data, can be estimidttedeasonable certainty to be economically probdleei-from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic drs, operating methods, and governmental reguisti-prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expirdess evidence indicates that renewal is reasorwatgin, regardless of whether deterministic
or probabilistic methods are used for the estinmatidhe project to extract the hydrocarbons musgetmmmenced or the operator must be
reasonably certain that it will commence the proyeithin a reasonable time.

"Proved undeveloped reservestans proved reserves that are expected to beerarbfrom new wells on undrilled acreage, or from
existing wells where a relatively major expenditigreequired for recompletion.

"Royalty" means an interest in an oil and natural gas leasedives the owner of the interest the right tceiee a portion of the
production from the leased acreage (or of the mas®f the sale thereof) but generally does natiredhe owner to pay any portion of the
costs of drilling or operating the wells on theded acreage.

"Severance taxtheans an amount of tax, surcharge or levy recoMgyerbvernmental agencies from the gross procekdit and natural
gas sales. Severance tax may be determined asentsge of proceeds or as a specific amount pamadtic unit of sales. Severance tax is
usually withheld from the gross proceeds of oil aatural gas sales by the first purchaser (e.gelipie or refinery) of production.

"Standardized measure of discounted future net lagls” (also referred to as "standardized measure™) mih@ngretax present value
of estimated future net revenues to be generabad fine production of proved reserves calculateattordance with SEC guidelines, net
of estimated production and future developments;asting prices and costs as of the date of estimatithout future escalation, without
giving effect to non-property related expenses saagbeneral and administrative expenses, debtteeawid depreciation, depletion and
amortization, and discounted using an annual disttate of 10%.

“Test Rate”means a daily volume of oil, gas or condensatehitiwa well produced to a pipeline or tank battgithin that well’s first
month of production based on information obtaineadnf public sources or from the operator.

"Undeveloped acreagetieans lease acreage on which wells have not béled dr completed to a point that would permit the
production of commercial quantities of oil and matwas regardless of whether such acreage comgeined reserves.

"Unitization" means the process of combining mineral interesksases thereof in separate tracts of land intogesentity for
administrative, operating or ownership purposestizition is sometimes called "pooling” or "commtiration" and may be voluntary or



involuntary.

"Working interest'(also referred to as an "operating interest") meareal property interest entitling the owner toetige a specified
percentage of the proceeds of the sale of oil atdral gas production or a percentage of the ptamubut requiring the owner of the
working interest to bear the cost to explore favelop and produce such oil and natural gas. A ingriaterest owner who owns a portion of
the working interest may participate either as afmeror by voting his percentage interest to appravdisapprove the appointment of an
operator and certain activities in connection wiith development and operation of a property.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.

By: Dorchester Minerals Management |
its general partner

By: Dorchester Minerals Management GP LI
its general partne

By: /s/William Casey McManemil

William Casey McManemil
Chief Executive Office

Date: February 23, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaathange Act of 1934, this report has been sigmdalibby the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

/s/ William Casey McManemin

William Casey McManemin

Chief Executive Officer and Manager
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 23, 2012

/sl James E. Raley

James E. Raley
Chief Operating Officer and Manager
Date: February 23, 2012

/s/ Preston A. Peak

Preston A. Peak
Manager
Date: February 23, 2012

/s/ Ronald P. Trout

Ronald P. Trout
Manager
Date: February 23, 2012
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H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Officer and Manager
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: February 23, 2012

/sl Buford P. Berry

Buford P. Berry
Manager
Date: February 23, 2012

/s/ C. W. Russell

C. W. Russell
Manager
Date: February 23, 2012

/s/ Robert C. Vaughn

Robert C. Vaughn
Manager
Date: February 23, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited Dorchester Minerals, L.P.’s (a date Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries’ (cdiledy, the “Partnership”) internal
control over financial reporting as of December&111, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (COSO). The Partnership’s manageis responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Managensefitinual Report on Internal Control Over Finan&taporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Partnership’s internatrobover financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiagutne design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaacepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, imaditerial respects, effective internal control dfueaincial reporting as of December 31, 2011,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bb@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Partnership as of Decemb@031 and 2010 and the related consolidated in®tatements, cash flows, and changes in
partnership capital for each of the three yeathénperiod ended December 31, 2011, and our relptetl February 23, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 23, 2012




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (a Delawaréted Partnership) and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Partnership”) as of December 2011 and 2010, and the related income statemeash, flows, and changes in partnership
capital for each of the three years in the periodieel December 31, 2011. These financial statenagatthe responsibility of the Partnership's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on olitsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatoidits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of the
Partnership as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 heniesults of its operations and its cash flowsefmrh of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011, in conformity with accountinmgiples generally accepted in the United State&mérica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Partnership's
internal control over financial reporting as of @etber 31, 2011, based on criteria establishéat@rnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSQ) and our repatedi February 23, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 23, 2012




DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Net profits interests receivable—related party
Total current assets
Other non-current assets
Property and leasehold improvements—at cost:
Oil and natural gas properties (full cost method)
Accumulated full cost depletion
Total
Leasehold improvements
Accumulated amortization
Total
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Current portion of deferred rent incentive
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent incentive less current portion
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)
Partnership capital:
General partner
Unitholders
Total partnership capital
Total liabilities and partnership capital

2011 2010
$ 14,238 $ 11,25
6,60- 5,54¢
7,61¢ 3,651
28,45¢ 20,45:

19 19
344,19¢ 344,19
(230,060 (211,761
114,13 132,43
512 512

(354) (305

15¢ 207

$ 142,76 $ 153,11
$ 52¢ $ 542
39 39

56¢ 581

90 12¢

65¢ 71C

4,24: 4,66¢
137,86 147,73
142,11 152,40:
$ 142,76 $ 153,11

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.




DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
For each of the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 204rid 2009
(Dollars in Thousands, except per unit amounts)

2011 2010 2009
Operating revenues:
Royalties $ 53,34t % 45,09 $ 33,41:
Net profits interests 15,52¢ 12,04¢ 9,44¢
Lease bonus 517 3,81¢ 68¢
Other 102 134 82
Total operating revenues 69,48¢ 61,09 43,63
Costs and expenses:
Production taxes 2,43( 1,72¢ 1,20z
Operating expenses 2,44 2,44; 2,16(
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 18,34¢ 17,98¢ 15,59¢
General and administrative expenses 4,08¢ 4,12¢ 3,71¢
Total costs and expenses 27,31: 26,287 22,67¢
Operating income 42,17¢ 34,801 20,95¢
Other income, net 37 76 72€
Net income $ 4221 % 34,88: $ 21,68
Allocation of net income:
General Partner $ 1,35¢ $ 1,157 $ 69¢
Unitholders $ 40,85¢ $ 33,72t $ 20,98:
Net income per common unit (basic and dilut $ 13: $ 111 $ 0.72
Weighted average common units outstanding (000's) 30,67t 30,46¢ 29,04

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For each of the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 20drid 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 4221 % 34,88: $ 21,68:

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating

activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 18,34¢ 17,98¢ 15,59¢
Amortization of deferred rent incentive (39 (40 (39

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade and other receivables (1,059 (229 (366)

Net profits interests receivable — related party (3,965 52 728

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (9) 9 (204
Net cash provided by operating activit 55,49¢ 52,76 37,39¢
Cash flows from investing activities:

Adjustment related to acquisition of oil and natgas properties — 682 1,251

Capital expenditures for property and leaseholdangments (6) (11€) (6)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (6) 564 1,24¢
Cash flows from financing activities:

Distributions paid to partners (52,505 (52,199 (44,729
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,98t 1,12¢ (6,087%)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,25: 10,12« 16,21:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14,23¢ $ 11,25 $ 10,12
Non-Cash investing and financing activities

Value of units issued for natural gas propertiepiaed — % 17,68t $ 36,49¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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Year

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERSHIP C APITAL

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200

2009

2010

2011

Balance at January 1, 2009

Net income

Acquisition of assets for units
Distributions ($1.501608 per Unit)
Balance at December 31, 2009

Net income
Acquisition of assets for units
Distributions ($1.654050 per Unit)

Balance at December 31, 2010

Net income
Distributions ($1.65339 per Unit)
Balance at December 31, 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

General

Partner Unitholders Total Unitholder Units
$ 5971 $ 132,61: $ 138,58: 28,240,43

69¢€ 20,98: 21,68
— 36,49¢ 36,49¢ 1,600,001

(1,42¢) (43,299 (44,729
5,24( 146,79: 152,03: 29,840,43

1,157 33,72¢ 34,88:
= 17,68¢ 17,68¢ 835,00(

(1,72¢) (50,470 (52,199
4,66¢ 147,73. 152,40: 30,675,43

1,35¢ 40,85¢ 42,21°*

(1,786 (50,719 (52,50%)
$ 4.24; $ 137,86¢ $ 142,11: 30,675,43

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Operations— In these Notes, the term “Partnership,” as wellhee terms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometés used as
abbreviated references to Dorchester Minerals, itsBIf or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. and its retbémtities. Our Partnership is a Dallas,
Texas based owner of producing and nonproducingaagas and crude oil royalty, net profits, areskhold interests in 574 counties and 25
states. We are a publicly traded Delaware limitadrership that was formed in December 2001, anthoenced operations on January 31,
2003.

Basis of Presentation Per-unit information is calculated by dividing imeome or loss applicable to holders of our Padhigrs commot
units by the weighted average number of units antihg. The Partnership has no potentially dilugeeurities and, consequently, basic and
dilutive income per unit do not differ.

Principles of Consolidation —Fhe consolidated financial statements include tlomants of Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Dorchestemdvls
Oklahoma, LP, Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, M&ecenas Minerals LLP, and Dorchester-MaecenakL&P Dorchester Minerals
Acquisition LP and Dorchester Minerals AcquisitiGi®, Inc. were merged into Dorchester Minerals Otaiah, LP and Dorchester Minerals
Oklahoma GP, Inc. effective December 31, 2009 sighificant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates —The preparation of financial statements in conformiiffmaccounting principles generally accepted inlimited States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuirgotions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efctnsolidated financial statements and the rep@nt@ounts of revenues and expenses durin
reporting period. For example, estimates of unctdié revenues and unpaid expenses from royaltegaetnprofits interests in properties
operated by non-affiliated entities are particylatibjective due to our inability to gain accuratel timely information. Therefore, actual
results could differ from those estimates. Seeanilfe Business — Customers and Pricing” and “IterfPPoperties — Royalty Properties” for
additional discussion.

The discounted present value of our proved oilatdral gas reserves is a major component of tfiegealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aeeémts based on engineering and geological anap#ésent reserve engineers could reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiegiledind natural gas reserves based on the g#orenation. The passage of time provides n
qualitative information regarding reserve estimatesl revisions are made to prior estimates basegbdated information. However, there can
be no assurance that more significant revisionkneil be necessary in the future. Significant doardwevisions could result in an impairment
representing a non-cash charge to income. In additi the impact on the calculation of the ceiliegt, estimates of proved reserves are also a
major component of the calculation of depletiorne 8ee discussion und&il and Natural Gas Properties

General Partner—Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managem@ntéferred to in these Notes as “our general pait®ur
general partner owns all of the partnership interesDorchester Minerals Operating LP, the opagatiartnership. See Note-3Related Party
Transactions. The general partner is allocated d@ul&6 of our Royalty Properties’ revenues and NRénues, respectively. Our executive
officers all own an interest in our general partaed receive no compensation for services provédedfficers of our Partnership.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsSur principal banking relationships are with major fieél institutions. Cash balances in these accounts
may, at times, exceed federally insured limits. Ndge not experienced any losses in such cash ascand do not believe we are exposed to
any significant risk on cash and cash equivaleéhert term investments with a maturity of three theror less are considered to be cash
equivalents and are carried at cost, which appratémfair value. Other income includes interest@@ion short term investments of $200,
$1,000, and $14,000 in 2011, 2010, and 2009, réspbc

Concentration of Credit Risks©ur Partnership, as a royalty owner, has no controt theevolumes or method of sale of oil and natural
gas produced and sold from the Royalty Propeftiés believed that the loss of any single customeuld not have a material adverse effect
on the consolidated results of our operations.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFhe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalenatde treceivables and payables approximates fair
value because of the short maturity of those insémits. These estimated fair values may not be septative of actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as afged or that will be realized in the future.



Trade Receivables-©Our Partnership’s trade receivables consist primafilRayalty Properties payments receivable and NPI
payments receivable. Most payments are receiveddi@mur months after production date. No allowafaredoubtful accounts is deemed
necessary based upon our history of collectionrawigw of current receivables.
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December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Oil and Natural Gas Properties- We utilize the full cost method of accounting émsts related to our oil and natural gas
properties. Under this method, all such costs apialized and amortized on an aggregate basistbeezstimated lives of the properties
using the units-of-production method. These capgdl costs are subject to a ceiling test, howeawbich limits such pooled costs to the
aggregate of the present value of future net resemtiributable to proved oil and natural gas kesediscounted at 10% plus the lower
of cost or market value of unproved properties. Batnership did not assign any value to unproveggaties, including nonproducing
royalty, mineral and leasehold interests. Theda#t ceiling is evaluated at the end of each quartd when events indicate possible
impairment. There have been no impairments foy#aes 2011, 2010, and 2009.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil reatiral gas reserves that are
included in the discounted present value of oueme=s are objectively determined. The ceiling tastulation requires use of the
unweighted arithmetic average of the first dayhaf tnonth price during the 12-month period endinghenbalance sheet date and costs
in effect as of the last day of the accountingqmbrivhich are generally held constant for thediféhe properties. As a result, the present
value is not necessarily an indication of the Yailue of the reserves. Oil and natural gas pries® istorically been volatile, and the
prevailing prices at any given time may not reflest Partnership’s or the industry’s forecast d@@ifa prices.

Our Partnership’s properties are being depletethemnit-of-production method using estimates ofved oil and natural gas reserves.
Gains and losses are recognized upon the dispositioil and natural gas properties involving andfigant portion (greater than 25%) of our
Partnership’s reserves. Proceeds from other dispasiof oil and natural gas properties are creditethe full cost pool. No gains or losses
have been recorded for 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Due to the nature of our interests, we have noceafpry wells or associated costs pending detettioimaand no exploratory well costs
were charged to expense for the years 2011, 201 @@00.

Leasehold Improvements keasehold improvements include $415,000 receiv@®d¥ as an incentive in our office space leasdsind
offset in liabilities as deferred rent. Leasehaighiovements are amortized over the shorter of gstimated useful lives or the related lease
life of 10 years. For leases with renewal periddbi@ Partnership’s option, we have used the aalderse term, excluding renewal option
periods to determine useful life. Deferred reneimtive is being amortized to general and admirtisga@xpense over the same term as the
leasehold improvements, which is 10 years.

Asset Retirement Obligatiors Based on the nature of our property ownershiphawe no material obligation required to be recdrde

Revenue Recognitier- The pricing of oil and natural gas sales fréva Royalty Properties is primarily determined bgEy and
demand in the marketplace and can fluctuate coraitie As a royalty owner, we have extremely lirditavolvement and operational
control over the volumes and method of sale o&od natural gas produced and sold from the Royalhperties.

Revenues from Royalty Properties and NPIs are decbunder the cash receipts approach as direciyverl from the remitters’
statement accompanying the revenue check. Sinaevleaue checks are generally received two tofoamths after the production month, the
Partnership accrues for revenue earned but naoveetby estimating production volumes and produictgs.

Income Taxes -We are treated as a partnership for income tax pugpaseé, as a result, our income or loss is includabthe tax returns
of the individual unitholders. Unitholders shoulshsult tax advisors concerning their own tax sitret. Depletion of oil and natural gas
properties is an expense allowable to each indaligartner, and the depletion expense as reporte¢kdeoconsolidated financial statements will
not be indicative of the depletion expense an iiddial partner or unitholder may be able to dedaciricome tax purposes.

Texas imposes a franchise tax (commonly referrestthe Texas margin tax) at a rate of 1% on gesmues less certain deductions, as
specifically set forth in the Texas margin tax stat The Texas margin tax applies to corporatiowkslinited liability companies, general and
limited partnerships (unless otherwise exempt)itéichliability partnerships, trusts (unless othesavexempt), business trusts, business
associations, professional associations, jointkstemnpanies, holding companies, joint venturesaarthin other business entities having
limited liability protection.



Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirngading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioine from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m&agias “passive entities.” We believe our Pasimg@ meets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingaxposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the $exa
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December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

margin tax. If the Partnership is exempt from Texasgin tax as a passive entity, each unitholdarithconsidered a taxable entity under the
Texas margin tax would generally be required tduide its portion of Partnership revenues in its Gvexas margin tax computation. The Te
Administrative Code provides such income is souszbrding to the principal place of business efRartnership, which would be the stat
Texas.

Each unitholder is urged to consult an indepentienadvisor regarding the requirements for filingts income, franchise and Texas
margin tax returns.

2. Acquisition for Units

We have an effective shelf registration statemerffarm S-4 registering 5,000,000 common units i@y be offered and issued by the
Partnership from time to time in connection witsetsacquisitions or other business combinatiorsaations. On March 31, 2010, Dorchester
Minerals, LP and a newly formed subsidiary acquakaf the outstanding partnership interests irebtnas Minerals, LLP, a Texas limited
liability partnership that owns producing and nagarcing mineral and royalty interests located irstétes, in exchange for 835,000 common
units of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. valued at $18,680 and issued pursuant to the shelf registratiaiement. The Consolidated Balance
Sheets presented include $17,121,000 in propedyiads as well as other assets and liabilitiesuaegl. After the issuance, 2,565,000 units
remain available under the shelf registration statet.

On June 30, 2009, we acquired producing and nodugeiog Barnett Shale mineral and royalty interéstated in Tarrant County, Texas
for 1,600,000 common units of Dorchester MineralB, issued pursuant to the shelf registratiorestaint. Net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition totaled $36,496,000. The balance sheetented include $35,245,000 in property addition

3. Related Party Transactions

Our general partner owns all of the partnershiprggts in the operating partnership. It is the eggal of all personnel, owns the working
interests and other properties underlying our N&tsl, provides day-to-day operational and admirtigsgaervices to us and the general
partner. In accordance with our partnership agre¢me reimburse the general partner for certdotable general and administrative costs,
including rent, salaries, and employee benefit pldmese types of reimbursements are limited tabelistributions, plus certain costs
previously paid. All such costs have been belowS¥elimit amount. Additionally, certain reimburseldirect costs such as professional and
regulatory fees and ad valorem and severance tare®ot limited. Significant activity between therimership and the operating partnership
consists of the following:

In Thousands
From/To Operating Partnership 2011 2010 2009

Net Profits Interests Payments Receivable or Aat®) $ 7,616 $ 3,651 $ 3,70¢
Interest Income related to Net Profits Interestgniants $ 0 % 2 % 3
General & Administrative Amounts Payable $ 105 $ 121 $ 34
General & Administrative Amounts Accrued $ 67 $ 45 3 33

$ 2,61¢ $ 247 $ 2,44¢

Total General & Administrative Amounts

1) All Net Profits Interests income on the financitements is from the operating partnership.
4. Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatiled Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oitaa regarding the use of natural gas from the virllesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly oviiyeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contribugignificant portion of the NPI
amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007, plaintiffe; fmmaterial costs, dismissed with prejudice Elros against the operating partnership
regarding such residential gas use. On Octobed@4,2he plaintiffs filed severed claims againg tiperating partnership regarding royalty
underpayments, which the Texas County District €subsequently dismissed with a grant of time ple&d. On January 27, 2006, one of the



original plaintiffs again sued the operating parshé for underpayment of royalty, seeking clagaccertification. On October 1, 2007,
the Texas County District Court granted the opegagiartnership’s motion for summary judgment fimdito royalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pl#istmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. On March 31, 2010, the
appeal decision reversed and remanded to the Teowsty District Court to resolve material issuedazt. On June 30, 2011, the District

Court issued a revised partial summary judgmefdavor of the operating partnership. A claim of arfgayment of royalty remains pending.
An adverse decision could reduce amounts we re¢ewethe NPIs.
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Our Partnership and the operating partnershipres@ved in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course of
their businesses, none of which have predictabieooues and none of which are believed to have @myfisant effect on consolidated
financial position, cash flows, or operating result

Operating Leases-We have entered into a non-cancelable, renewablesgtjling rate for an additional five years, opergtiease
agreement in the ordinary course of our businetgities. The lease is for our office space at 38k Lawn Avenue, Suite 300, Dallas,
Texas, and expires in 2015. Rental expense refatéte lease, including operating expenses anduoopison of electricity, was $233,000,
$226,000, and $217,000 for the years ended DeceBih@011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The basessealated in November 2010.
Minimum rental commitments under the terms of querating lease are as follows:

Minimum
Years Ended December 31, Payments
2012 $ 240,00(
2013 249,00(
2014 261,00(
2015 65,00(
Total $ 815,00(

5. Distribution To Holders Of Common Units
Unitholder cash distributions per common unit heeen:

Per Unit Amount

2011 2010 2009
First Quarter $ 0.42674! $ 0.44922; $ 0.40120!
Second Quarter $ 0.41702° $ 0.41220° $ 0.27135.
Third Quarter $ 0.45554( $ 0.47108. $ 0.28696!
Fourth Quarter $ 0.44855. $ 0.35407: $ 0.32154(

Distributions beginning with the first quarter @320 were paid on 30,675,431 units; distributiomsfithe second quarter of 2009
through the fourth quarter of 2009 were paid 0r820,431 units; previous distributions above welid pa 28,240,431 units. Fourth quarter
distributions are paid in February of the followioglendar year to unitholders of record in Janwaryebruary of such following year. The
partnership agreement requires the next cashhuisitsn to be paid by May 15, 2012.

6. Unaudited Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardied Measure Information

The NPIs represent net profits overriding royattierests in various properties owned by the opegatartnership. The Royalty Properties
consist of producing and nonproducing mineral, lyyaverriding royalty, net profits, and leasehaiterests located in 574 counties and
parishes in 25 states. Amounts set forth hereiibatable to the NPIs reflect our 96.97% net sh@ihe estimated quantities at the end of 2011
include for the first time 96.97% of the Mineral®N-eserves shown in “ltem 2 —Propertieblet Profits Interest. Although new discoveries
have occurred on certain of the Royalty Properbiased on engineering studies available to dateyants have occurred since

December 31, 2011 that would have a material effeaiur estimated proved developed reserves.

In accordance with FASB ASC 932 and SecuritiesExchange Commission rules and regulations, thewviatlg information is
presented with regard to the Royalty PropertiesMiBts oil and natural gas reserves, all of whigh@oved, developed and located in the
United States. These rules require inclusion agpalement to the basic financial statements a staiwked measure of discounted future net
cash flows relating to proved oil and natural geserves. The standardized measure, in managermpinign, should be examined with
caution. The basis for these disclosures is petrolengineers’ reserve studies which contain impeeestimates of quantities and rates of
production of reserves. Revision of prior yearraates can have a significant impact on the resAlés, exploration and production
improvement costs in one year may significantlyngeaprevious estimates of proved reserves andvkiation. Values of unproved



properties and anticipated future price and caskimses or decreases are not considered. Thergfersgandardized measure is not
necessarily a best estimate of the fair value lcdirodl natural gas properties or of future net dbshs.
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The following summaries of changes in reservesstandardized measure of discounted future netftask were prepared from
estimates of proved reserves. The production voluamel reserve volumes included for properties fosnmvned by Dorchester Hugoton are
wellhead volumes, which differ from sales volumkeewn in “Iltem 7. — Management's Discussion and #sialof Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” because of fuel, shrinkagkmpeline loss. The Standardized Measure of Distad Future Net Cash Flows reflects
adjustments for such fuel, shrinkage and pipeliss.|

Oil (mbbls) Natural Gas (mmcf)
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
Estimated quantity, beginning of ye 3,33¢ 3,271 3,57( 61,67¢ 60,28( 60,97
Purchase of minerals in place — 15¢€ — — 1,16: 5,58¢
Revisions in previous estimates 60C 23C 13 15,767 8,99: 2,21z
Production (367) (332) (30€) (10,487 (8,757) (8,499
Estimated quantity, end of year 3,56¢ 3,33: 3,27 66,96 61,67¢ 60,28(

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows
(Dollars in Thousands Except Where Noted)

2011 2010 2009
Future estimated gross revenues $ 537,38¢ $ 459,36¢ $ 333,16:
Future estimated production costs (32,879 (28,439) (18,48%)
Future estimated net revenues 504,51¢ 430,93 314,67
10% annual discount for estimated timing of caslv§l (242,92 (211,32) (148,639)
Standardized measure of discounted future estimmtdash flows $ 261,59 $ 219,60¢ $ 166,03"
Sales of oil and natural gas produced, net of priioln costs $ (63,999 $ (52,97() $ (39,499
Purchase of reserves in place 8,80¢ 7,45¢%
Net changes in prices and production ¢ 13,34( 56,75! (8,396
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 67,65¢ 27,89t 4,751
Accretion of discount 21,96! 16,60¢ 18,94¢
Change in production rate and other 3,02( (3,510 (6,709
Net change in standardized measure of discountadsfestimated net
cash flows $ 41,98 $ 53,57 $ (23,449
Depletion of oil and natural gas properties (dsllper mcfe) $ 144 $ 167 $ 1.51
Property acquisition costs $ — $ 17,127 $ 35,24¢
Average oil price per barré) $ 92.31 $ 75.5¢ $ 56.37
Average natural gas price per ntef $ 400 $ 4.1€ $ 3.24
(1) Includes Royalty and NPI prices combined bjumetric proportions.
7. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data
Quarterly financial data for the last two yearstfinusands except per unit data) is summarizedliasvs:
2011 Quarter Ended 2010 Quarter Ended
March March
31 June 30 Sept.30 Dec. 31 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Total operating revenues $ 14,28¢ $ 16,43: $ 18,32t $ 20,44( $ 1553¢ $ 14,25¢ $ 16,467 $ 14,83
Net income $ 7,74C $ 9,77C $ 1150¢ $ 13,19¢ $ 892¢ $ 7,93z $ 9,53¢ $ 8,48¢

Net income per Unit (basicand dilute $ 024 $ 031 $ 03¢ $ 04z $ 02¢ $ 022 $ 03C $ 0.27



Weighted average common units
outstanding 30,67¢ 30,67¢ 30,67¢ 30,67¢ 29,84¢ 30,67¢ 30,67¢ 30,67¢

F-12




INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorsker Minerals, L.P. (incorporated by reference xbikit 3.1 to Dorchester Minerals’
Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registratiombler 333-88282)

3.2 Amended and Restated Agreement of LimitathBeship of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (incorpodaby reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
Dorchester Minerals’ Annual Report on Form 10-K tloe year ended December 31, 2002)

3.3 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorsker Minerals Management LP (incorporated by refeego Exhibit 3.4 to
Dorchester Minerals’ Registration Statement on F8rdy, Registration Number 333-88282)

3.4 Amended and Restated Agreement of LimitedinBeship of Dorchester Minerals Management LPdjiporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.4 to Dorchester Minerals’ Annual Repontfeorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

3.5 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester MialsrManagement GP LLC (incorporated by referendextubit 3.7 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Registration Statement on Form S-4, Regiion Number 333-88282)

3.6 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Compagreement of Dorchester Minerals Management G€ (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Dorchester Mineralsiial Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer@bhe2002)

3.7 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester MialsrOperating GP LLC (incorporated by referencExhibit 3.10 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Registration Statement on Form S-4, Regfion Number 333-88282)

3.8 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Doegter Minerals Operating GP LLC (incorporated Hgnence to Exhibit 3.11 to
Dorchester Minerals’ Registration Statement on F8rdy, Registration Number 333-88282)

3.9 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorsker Minerals Operating LP (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 3.12 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Registration Statement on Form S-4, Regiion Number 333-88282)

3.10 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartieftDorchester Minerals Operating LP (incorpodaly reference to Exhit
3.10 to Dorchester Minerals’ Annual Report on FAiorK for the year ended December 31, 2002)

3.11 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Doesker Minerals Oklahoma LP (incorporated by refeecio Exhibit 3.11 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2002)

3.12 Agreement of Limited Partnership of DordeeMinerals Oklahoma LP (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.12 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2002)

3.13 Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchestéinerals Oklahoma GP, Inc. (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 3.13 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2002)

3.14 Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma @, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1Dmrchester Minerals’ Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe302)

10.1 Amended and Restated Business Opportudiiesement dated as of December 13, 2001 by aneeketthe Registrant, the
General Partner, Dorchester Minerals ManagementlG&R, SAM Partners, Ltd., Vaughn Petroleum, Ltd.,iBnAllen Oil &

Gas, Inc., P.A. Peak, Inc., James E. Raley, Imdl cartain other parties (incorporated by refergndexhibit 10.1 to Dorchester
Minerals’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2002)

10.2 Transfer Restriction Agreement (incorpaidig reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dorchester Mifgrannual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002)

10.3 Registration Rights Agreement (incorpordtedeference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dorchester Mingralnnual Report on Form 1K-for
the year ended December 31, 2002)

10.4 Lock-Up Agreement by William Casey McManarfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to éhaster Minerals’ Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe302)

10.5 Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Miner&siarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

10.6 Contribution and Exchange Agreement byamdng Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Tiggator, Inc.BlRinerals, LP and West Fork
Partners dated May 15, 2009 (incorporated by rateréo Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Minerals’ Curraport on Form 8-K
dated June 30, 2009)

10.7 Amendment No. 1 dated June 26, 2009 torbation and Exchange Agreement by and among Daetehdinerals, L.P.,
Tiggator, Inc., TRB Minerals, LP and West Fork Rars dated May 15, 2009 (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.2 to
Dorchester Minerals’ Quarterly Report on Form 18e@the quarter ended June 30, 2009)

10.8 Lock-up Agreement by Tiggator, Inc. datede)30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 to Dorchester Minerals’

Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2009)




Number

Description

10.9

10.10

10.11

21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
23.3*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1%
99.1*
99.2*

Lock-up Agreement by TRB Minerals, LP dated Jung2B@9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.Dbrchester Minerals’
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2009)

Lock-up Agreement by West Fork Partners, LP dated B0, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBif to Dorchester
Minerals’ Current Report on Form 8-K dated JuneZ)9)

Contribution and Exchange Agreement dated Marct2810 by and among Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Daligees Foundation,
The Legett Foundation, Kickapoo Springs Foundafidre Karakin Foundation, Still Water Foundationft{m Minerals, L.P.,
2MW Limited Partnership, Julia Jones Matthews, Teeof the Julia Jones Matthews Living Trust, aptthJA. Matthews, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Destler Minerals' Report on Form 8-K (filed on Afjl2010).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

Consent of Calhoun, Blair & Associates

Consent of LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Seegriixchange Act of 1934
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Seegriixchange Act of 1934
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350

Report of Calhoun, Blair & Associates

Report of LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Document
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewith



Subsidiaries of Registrant
Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma LP, an Oklahommétdid partnership

Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inc., an Qita& corporation

Maecenas Minerals LLP, a Texas limited liapipartnership

Dorchester-Maecenas GP LLC, a Texas limitdallitg company

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We have issued our reports dated February 23, 2@ft2respect to the consolidated financial statet®i@nd internal control over financial
reporting included in in the Annual Report of Dagster Minerals, L.P. on Form 10-K for the year ehDecember 31, 2011. We hereby

consent to the incorporation by reference of sajmbrts in the Registration Statement of Dorchddiaerals, L.P. on Form S-4 (File No. 33-
124544).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 23, 2012



Exhibit 23.2

CALHOUN, BLAIR & A SSOCIATES
PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS
4625 REENVILLE AVENUE, SUITE 102
DALLAS, TEXAS 75206
214-522-4925
Fax 214-346-0310
RGBLAIR @SWBELL .NET

February 23, 2012

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

Calhoun, Blair & Associates does hereby consettiédncorporation by reference in the Registragtsitement on Form S-4 (No. 333-
124544) of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estidateserves included in this Annual Report on F&O¥ including, without limitation
Exhibit 99.1, and to all references to our firmlimezd in this Annual Report.

/s/ Robert G. Blair, P.E.
Calhoun, Blair & Associates
Licensed Professional Engineer
State of Texas #68057
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LaRache Petroleum Consullants, Lid,

February 23, 201

Dorchester Minerals L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. does herebgasurio the incorporation by reference in the Regisn Statement on
Form S-4 (No. 333-124544) of Dorchester Mineral®,.lof our estimated reserves included in this AhiReport on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011, including, withoitation, Exhibit 99.2, and to all referencesdur firm included in this Annual
Report.

LAROCHE PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS,
LTD.

/s/ Peter R. Laudon

LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.
Licensed Professional Engineer
State of Texas #986(

4600 Greenville Avenue, Suite 168 Dallas, Texas 75200 Phone (214) 363-3337 Fax (214) 363-1608



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, William Casey McManemin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKorchester Minerals, L.P.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles.

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repasedl on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anldve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2012 s/ William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemin
Chief Executive Officer of
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals, L.P.




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, H.C. Allen, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKorchester Minerals, L.P.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

b)  Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles.

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduesf ¢he end of the period covered by this repasel on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2012 /s/ H.C. Allen, Jr.
H.C. Allen, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer of
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals, L.P.




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbiDorchester Minerals, L.P., (the “Partnership”)eorm 10K for the period ende
December 31, 2010 (the “Report”), each of the usigaed officers of Dorchester Minerals ManagemeRtLE&C, General Partner of
Dorchester Minerals Management LP, General Padhttre Partnership, hereby certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeenf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeaAct of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of
the Partnership.

Date: February 23, 2012 /s/ William Casey McManemin

William Casey McManemin
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 23, 2012 /s/ H.C. Allen, Jr.

H.C. Allen, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer
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CALHOUN, BLAIR & A SSOCIATES
PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS
4625 REENVILLE AVENUE, SUITE 102
DALLAS, TEXAS 75206
214-522-4925
Fax 214-346-0310
RGBLAIR @SWBELL .NET

January 18, 2012

Dorchester Minerals Operating GP LLC
General Partner

3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

In accordance with your instructions we have pregarstimates of oil and gas reserves from cer&inehold and royalty intere
owned by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP, whichsist of properties grouped by Hugoton NPI, RemublPI, Spinnaker NPI, Maecer
NPI, Minerals NPI and Bradley NPI. We have prodecour estimates of future oil and gas productiomually, as of January 1, 2012, for tF
properties. This report includes 100% of the aill @as reserves owned by Dorchester Minerals GpgratP, all of which are located in 1
contiguous United States. This report was prep&oeatovide Dorchester Minerals Operating LP wittc&ities and Exchange Commiss
compliant reserve estimates.

Information necessary for the preparation of trestenates was obtained from records furnished bgliEster Minerals Operating L
from records on file with the state regulatory tesgiand from our own files No special tests were obtained to assist in thpgpetion of thi
report. For the purpose of this report, the irdiinal well tests and production information as régebrin the records on filewith the stat
regulatory bodies were accepted as representeethtergwith all other factual data provided by Daster Minerals Operating LP, including
extent and character of the interest appraised.

The following table contains the estimated netmeseand revenues attributable to the propertyggdbat are currently in pay ste
as of January 1, 2012.

Hugoton Maecenas
NPI Republic NPl  Spinaker NPI NPI
Net Oil Reserves, BB 0 28,00( 18C 3,27(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 22,236.85 426.84( 46.13( 111.05(
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 82,179,85 4,586,03I 224,66( 861,41(
Net Operating Expense, 38,044,35 1,185,701 61,61( 225,21(
Net Taxes, ¢ 6,580,32! 424,84( 16,53( 82,04(
Net Capital Costs, 1,060,001 0 0 0
Net Income, { 36,495,18 2,975,49 146,52( 554,17(

Net Present Worth at 10%, 25,053,66' 2,111,131 103,80( 393,17(




Minerals NPl Bradley NPI Total

Net Oil Reserves, BB 229,86( 2,83( 264,14(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 6,071.70! 5.52( 28,898.09
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 43,089,06 285,54( 131,226,55
Net Lease Operating Expense 10,583,99 68,50( 50,169,36
Net Taxes, ¢ 3,295,22 17,41( 10,416,36
Net Capital Costs, 0 0 1,060,001
Net Income, { 29,209,85 199,64( 69,580,85
Net Present Worth at 10%, 20,191,07 164,14( 48,016,97

All estimated reserves in this report are considexs proved developed producing. Proved develgpeducing reserves are th
proved to a high degree of certainty by reasorctafa completion or successful testing. Estimafgsroved reserves were made using star
geological and engineering methods accepted byételeum industry. The method, or combinationrafthods, utilized was tempered
experience in the area, state of development, tyuatid extent of the basic data and productiorohistThese methods and procedures
appropriate for the purpose served by this repudtvee have used all methods necessary under thenstances to prepare this report.

When the information was available and the methas \applicable, oil and gas reserves in this repate estimated by t
extrapolation of historical trends of pressure ihechs a function of cumulative production, oil ayas production decline as a function of 1
and oil and gas production decline as a functionusfulative production. For certain wells havintinsited production history, reserves w
estimated by analogy with nearby similar wellshe same formation. All gas volumes are raw wellhgas volumes expressed at 60 de(
Fahrenheit and at a standard pressure base of idustils per square inch absolute.

Reserves in this report are expressed as grossedrmil and gas production. Net oil and gas préidanaepresents those reserves n
the appraised interest after deducting all leasklold royalty interests owned by others. Valueseskrves are expressed in terms o
operating revenues, cash flow before taxes, angeptavorth. Net operating revenue is revenue, livhiould accrue to the appraised inter
from the production and sale of the estimated estnves. Cash flow before taxes is obtained byaed) severance and ad valorem taxes
operating expenses and capital costs from net tipgreevenue. Oil and gas prices, net operatingeeges and future capital costs v
furnished by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP.sBn¢ worth is defined as the future cash flow befiaxes discounted at the rate of
(10.00) percent per year compounded annually. lF@ipurpose of this report no estimate was madaleége value for the existing lease
well equipment, or costs involved in abandonmerthefwells.

Due to inherent uncertainties in future productiates, commodity prices and geologic conditions,réserves included in this ref
are estimates only and should not be construectiag lexact quantities. The revenues from suchrveseand the actual costs related the
could be more or less than the estimated amouhtss@ope of this investigation did not include ani®nmental study of these properties,
was an orsite field inspection conducted. For the purpdsthis report, it was necessary to assume thaethegperties are in compliance v
existing government regulations. Because of gawemtal policies and uncertainties of supply and aleihn the prices actually received for
reserves included in this report, and the costsriied in recovering suctreserves, may vary from price and cost assumptiotigs report. |
any case, estimates of reserves may increase mradecas a result of future operation and as nrodkiption history becomes available. Tt
are_no known pending regulations that would affect aibdity of Dorchester MineralsOperating LP to recover the estimated reservekig
report.




The oil and gas prices included in this report wanavided by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP amdenadjusted for BTU, fuel a
line losses as well as for local markets. The Haiggrices were determined as an unweighted artibragerage of the Panhandle Eas
(Texas and Oklahoma) first day of the month prigerd) the twelve month period of 2011. The benctngas price for the Hugoton opere
properties was $3.89 per MMBTU. The benchmarkegxifor the other NPI properties were determinedrasnweighted arithmetic average
the NYMEX Henry Hub and West Texas Intermedi@gshing first day of the month price during the livgemonth period of 2011. T
benchmark oil and gas prices for the NPI propestiese $96.19 per barrel and $4.12 per MMBTU, respely. The overall weighted avere
prices were $90.04 per barrel and $3.72 per MMBTU.

Calhoun, Blair & Associates have not examined itie to these properties, nor has the actual degrdgpe of interest owned be
independently confirmed. We are independent peatrolengineers; we do not own an interest in thespesties and are not employed ¢
contingent basis. Basic field performance datattwagewith our engineering work sheets are mainthioe file in our office and are availa
for review. Calhoun Blair & Associates have met tequirements regarding qualifications, independgepbjectivity, and confidentiality ¢
forth in the “Standards Pertaining to the Estimg@md Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Informati(me¥ised February 2007) promulgatec
the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

Included in this report are summaries of gross r@etdoil and gas reserves grouped by Hugoton NPbuBR& NPI, Spinnaker NF
Maecenas NPI, Minerals NPI and Bradley NPI. Algoluded are projections of estimated annual grossreet oil and gas production,
operating revenue, severance and ad valorem tagegperating expenses, net capital costs, cashifidore taxes, and present worth fo
properties appraised as of January 1, 2012. Rreseth of future cash flow is not meant to reprégbe Fair Market Value of these propet
or of Dorchester Minerals Operating LP.

Yours very truly,

Calhoun, Blair & Associates
Licensed Professional Engineer
State of Texas #68057
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LaRache Petroleum Consullants, Lid,

January 19, 2012

Mr. Brad Ehrman
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Dear Mr. Ehrman:

At your request, LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, (LBC) has estimated the proved reserves andefash flow, as of Deceml
31, 2011, to the Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (DML&Yalty interest in certain properties located omshin the continental United States.
report was completed as of the date of this lefthis report was prepared to provide DMLP with S#éms and Exchange Commission (SI
compliant reserve estimates. It is our understapdhat the report comprises one-hundred (100%emerof DMLPS royalty interests,
which ninetyfour percent (94%) were evaluated by LPC and siggrd (6%) by Calhoun Blair. We believe that theumsptions, data, metho
and procedures used in preparing this report, tagusdelow, are appropriate for the purpose of thport. This report has been prepared |
constant prices and costs and conforms to our stateting of the SEC guidelines, reserves defirsti@and applicable financial account
rules.

The Fayetteville Royalty properties (Group 22) wprejected by Calhoun Blair & Associates Inc. inllBs, Texas at the request
DMLP.

We note that we have necessarily included compgsigections of net oil and gas reserves for cerpabperties due to the limit
information available to DMLP as a royalty interestner and relatively small net reserves attribletab any specific property within t
composite group.

Summarized below are LPE€estimates of net reserves and future net cash fluture net revenue is prior to deducting edit
production and ad valorem taxes. Future net chsh i§ after deducting these taxes but before ctamation of federal income taxes. -
discounted cash flow values included in this repoetintended to represent the time value of ma@amelyshould not be construed to represe
estimate of fair market value. We estimate theres¢rves and future net cash flow to the DMLPregg as of December 31, 2011, to be:

Net Reserves Future Net Cash Flow (M
Present
oll Gas Equiv. NGL Net Revenu Net Taxes Worth at
Category (Mbbl) (MMcf) (MMcf) (M$) (M$) Total 10%
Proved Developed Producing 3,310 33,947 4,993 $ 469,917 $ 32,874 $ 437,043 $ 215,028

The oil reserves include crude oil and condensadkeaze expressed in thousands of barrels (Mbblictware equivalent to 42 Unit
States gallons/bbl. Gas reserves and equivaléntat@as liquids (NGL) are expressed in millioist@andard cubic feet (MMcf) at the conti
temperature and pressure bases.

2435 N. Central Expressway, Suite 1580Richardson, Texas 75080 Phone (214) 363-3337 Fax (214) 363-1608




The estimated reserves and future cash flow showthi$ report are for proved developed producirggmnees. This report does
include any value that could be attributed to ie$¢s in undeveloped acreage.

The reserves in this report have been estimatedydgterministic methods. The method or combimatib methods utilized in tl
evaluation of each reservoir included consideratibthe stage of development of the reservoir, iguaind completeness of basic data,
production history. Recovery from various reservcand leases was estimated after consideratiotiheoftype of energy inherent in -
reservoirs, the structural positions of the prdpertand reservoir and well performance. In somsgahces, comparisons were made to si
properties for which more complete data were akbélaWe have used all methods and proceduresatbatonsidered necessary under
circumstances to prepare this report. We haveudrd from our consideration all matters as to withehcontrolling interpretation may be le
or accounting rather than engineering or geoscience

The estimated reserves and future cash flow amoinntbis report are related to hydrocarbon pricdsstorical prices throug
December 2011 were used in the preparation ofrépiert as required by SEC guidelines; however,adtiture prices may vary significan
from the SEC prices. In addition, future changeerivironmental and administrative regulations sigpificantly affect the ability of DMLP
produce oil and gas at the projected levels. Thezgvolumes of reserves actually recovered andusuts of cash flow actually received r
differ significantly from the estimated quantitigsesented in this report.

Benchmark prices used in this report are baseth@twelve-month unveighted arithmetic average of the first day of thenth pric:
for the period January through December 2011. [gBiass are referenced to a Henry Hub price of $44r2MMBtu, as published in the Pl
Gas Daily, and are adjusted for energy contentisprartation fees, and regional price differentiadsl prices are referenced to a West Ti
Intermediate (WTI) crude oil price of $96.19 perrehat Cushing Oklahoma and are adjusted for gragiude quality, transportation fees,
regional price differentials. NGLs are presenteMiCF-equivalent units; therefore prices are tied to retgas prices. These benchmark pi
are held constant in accordance with SEC guidelifid®e weighted average prices after adjustmengs the life of the properties are $92
per barrel for oil and $4.21 per mcf for gas.

The interests evaluated in this report consistndy coyalty interests that are not burdened by afieg and capital costs.

LPC has made no investigation of possible gas veland value imbalances that may have resulted ttwnoverdelivery ¢
underdelivery to the DMLP interest. Our projectiare based on the DMLP interest receiving itsetnue interest share of estimated ft
gross oil and gas production.

Technical information necessary for the preparatibthe reserve estimates herein was furnished M® or was obtained from st:
regulatory agencies and commercially available dataces. No special tests were obtained to dssike preparation of this report. For
purpose of this report, the individual well testigroduction data as reported by the above sowvees accepted as represented togethel
all other factual data presented by DMLP including extent and character of the interest evaluated.

2435 N. Central Expressway, Suite 1580Richardson, Texas 75080 Phone (214) 363-3337 Fax (214) 363-1608




An on-site inspection of the properties has not beenopaed nor has the mechanical operation or condiiothe wells and the
related facilities been examined by LPC.

The evaluation of potential environmental liabilftpm the operation and abandonment of the pragseit beyond the scope of
report. In addition, no evaluation was made tedeine the degree of operator compliance with ctremvironmental rules, regulations,
reporting requirements. Therefore, no estimatehef potential economic liability, if any, from enenmental concerns is included in
projections presented herein.

There are inherent uncertainties in the estimagioth projection of future reserves and revenue® rékerves included in this reg
are estimates only and should not be construedaxs guantities. They may or may not be recoveifegcovered, the revenues therefrom
the costs related thereto could be more or less the estimated amounts. These estimates shouttdepted with the understanding
future development, production history, changesegulations, product prices, and operating expemgadd probably cause us to mi
revisions in subsequent evaluations. A portionthefse reserves are for producing wells that ladkicgnt production history to utiliz
performanceelated reserve estimates. Therefore, these eseme based on estimates of reservoir volumesenudery efficiencies aloi
with analogies to similar production. These reseegtimates are subject to a greater degree oftamtg than those based on substa
production and pressure data. It may be necessamvise these estimates up or down in the fuagradditional performance data bec
available. As in all aspects of oil and gas eué#duma there are uncertainties inherent in the prigtation of engineering and geological ¢
therefore, our conclusions represent informed pimal judgments only, not statements of fact.

The results of our thirgharty study were prepared in accordance with teelasure requirements set forth in the SEC reguiatan
intended for public disclosure as an exhibit imfjls made with the SEC by DMLP.

DMLP makes periodic filings on Form with the SEC under the 1934 Exchange Act. Furntteee, DMLP has certain registrat
statements filed with the SEC under the 1933 SeesirAct into which any subsequently filed Form K Qs incorporated by reference. '
have consented to the incorporation by referendbenregistration statements on Form S-3 and FoinoEDMLP of the references to ¢
name as well as to the references to our third¢paport for DMLP which appears in the December Z111 annual report on Form ¥0-
and/or 10-K/A of DMLP. Our written consent for sugse is included as a separate exhibit to theglimade with the SEC by DMLP.

We have provided DMLP with a digital version of theginal signed copy of this report letter. Iretbvent there are any differen

between the digital version included in filings reday DMLP and the original signed report letteg triginal signed report letter shall con
and supersede the digital version.
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The technical persons responsible for preparingélerve estimates presented herein meet the eeggnts regarding qualificatio
independence, objectivity, and confidentiality &&th in the ‘Standards Pertaining to the Estimating and Audith@il and Gas Reserv
Information” (evised February 2007) promulgated by the SociétPetroleum Engineers. The technical person pilynaesponsible fc
overseeing the preparation of reserves estimatesnhis Joe A. Young. Mr. Young is a ProfessioBabineer licensed in the State of Te
who has thirty years of engineering experiencehim ¢il and gas industry. Mr. Young earned a Bawmhef Science degree in Petrole
Engineering from Texas A&M University and MastemsBusiness Administration degree from West TexasvA&niversity and has prepat
reserves estimates for his employers and his owmpaaies throughout his career. He has preparedasiceen preparation of reports
public filings for LPC for the past fifteen yearsPC is an independent firm of petroleum enginegeslogists, and geophysicists and is
employed on a contingent basis. Data pertinetititoreport are maintained on file in our office.

Very truly yours,

LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.
State of Texas Registration Number F-1360

Joe A. Young
Licensed Professional Engineer
State of Texas No. 62866

Peter R. Laudon

Licensed Professional Engineer
State of Texas No. 98603
Licensed Professional Geoscientist
State of Texas No. 2779
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